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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of City Council
City of York, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of York, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of York, Pennsylvania's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments; Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain
Shared Non-Exchange Revenues-—-an amendment to GASB Statement No. 33, Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements—-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, and Statement No. 41, Budgetary
Comparison Schedules—Perspective Differences—-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, as of January 1,
2003.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of York,
Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

1
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To the Members of City Council
City of York, Pennsylvania

As discussed in Note 14 to the basic financial statements, certain pension disputes went to arbitration, and the
arbitrator ruled against the City. Under the arbitrator's awards, the City was required to contribute an additional
$3.7 million per year beginning in 1996 for ten years and an additional $1.9 million per year beginning in 2006
for the following ten years to fully fund the pension plans in accordance with Level Il of the State’s Act 205
recovery program. However, the City has received authorization from the State’s Public Employee Retirement
Commission to suspend these payments as long as the disputes continue in litigation or negotiation. In May
2004, the City received notification that they were required to fully reflect all of the pension benefits provided
under the 1994 arbitration awards in the Act 205 Actuarial Valuation Reports prepared as of January 1, 2003,
in order to comply with the actuarial reporting and funding standards mandated under Act 205. The City of
York has been advised by their actuary that the unfunded accrued liability related to the arbitration award is
approximately $25.33 million. Under the current provisions of Act 205, the City’s annual minimum municipal
obligation would increase by just under $3 million per year, and the annual normal cost would increase by
about $561,000, for a total increase in the annual minimum municipal obligation of approximately $3.56 million.
The City is researching various funding methods to meet the added cost of the annual minimum municipal
obligation. The City has not provided any liability related to the arbitrator's award.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 8, 2004,
on our consideration of the City of York, Pennsylvania's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules of historical
pension information are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it. Based on the directions of the Public Employee Retirement Commission, as
discussed in Note 14, by January 15, 2005, the City is required to amend its January 1, 2003 actuarial
valuation reports, for the Firefighters' and Police Pension Plans, to fully reflect all of the pension benefits
provided under the 1994 arbitration award in order to comply with the actuarial reporting and funding standards
mandated under Act 205. The figures provided within the historical pension information do not reflect the
amendments required by the Public Employee Retirement Commission, as the amended actuarial reports were
not yet available as of the date of this report.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of York's basic financial statements. The combining fund statements are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
fund statements have been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

%Qﬁ\éz;‘ﬂ, /W?Q—-’f? LA
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

our discussion and analysis of the City of York’s financial performance provides
an overview, perspective and analysis of the City‘'s financial activities for the
year ended December 31, 2003. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements, which begin with the Statement of Net Assets on page 18. The
discussion also focuses on the primary government and unless otherwise noted,
component units are not included.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

e The assets of the City of York exceeded its liabilities by $57,913,374 (Net
Assets) .

o Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, in the amount of
$68,090,663, includes all capital assets including infrastructure.

o Restricted net assets with external restrictions imposed by creditors
or laws or regulations of other governments amounted to $13,246,470.

o Unrestricted net assets, which are assets not restricted for any
particular purpose, were {$23,423,739).

e Over 2003, the City of York’s net assets decreased by $2,929,254, primarily
as a result of assuming the capital assets and debt of the York Recreation
Corporation and amortization of capital appreciation bonds, offset by
principal payments on long-term liabilities and the depreciation of capital
assets.

¢ Af December 31, 2003, the fund balances of the City of York’'s governmental
funde were $3,166,108. This was an decrease of $66,480 in compariscn to
December 31, 2002.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The City’s financial report consists of several sections. Taken together, they
provide a comprehensive financial lock at the City. The components of the report
inciude the independent auditor’s report, management’s discussion and analysis,
and the basic financial statements (government-wide financial statements, fund
financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements). This report
also contains reguired supplementary information and other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

The independent auditors’ report briefly describes the audit engagement and
renders an opinion regarding the material components of the City’'s financial
position,

Management’'s discussion and analysis (MD&A), prepared by City management, provides
a narrative introduction and overview that users of the financial statements need
to interpret the basic financial statements. The MD&R provides analysis of some
key data that is presented in the basic financial statements and addrvesses any
other currently known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to have a
significant effect on financial position or results of operations.

(continued)}



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The basic financial statements include the government-wide statements, fund
financial statements, and the notes to the basic financial statements.

s The government-wide financial statements focus on the entity-wide
presentation using the accrual basis of acaounting. They are designed to be
more corporate-like, in that all activities are consolidated into a total
for the City.

o The government-wide Statement of Net Assets focuses on  resources
available for future operations. This statement presents a snapshot of
the assets the City owns, the liabilities it owes and the net
difference.

o The government-wide Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net
costs of city programs and the extent to which such programs rely upon
taxes and other revenues. This statement summarizes and simplifies the
user’s analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-
supporting and/or subsidized by other sources.

e Fund fipancial statements focus separately on major Governmental Funds,
Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds.

o Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources
available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’'s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental fund £inancial statements is
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented by the two in order to
better understand the long-term impact of near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance provide reconciliation to facilitate the comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of York reports two major governmental funds: {1) the General
Fund, which accounts for all f£inancial resources of the general
government except those required to be accounted for in another fund;
and {2} the Debt Service Fund, which accounts for the accumulation of
resources, which are principally transfers from other funds, for the
payment of general long-term obligation principal, interest, and
related costs. Data from all the other governmental funds is combined
into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements in supplementary information.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

o The City’'s proprietary fund statements follow the governmental fund
statements and include the statement of net assets, the statement of
revenue, expenses, and changes in net assets and the statement of cash
flows. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds.

#  FEnterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented
as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its
Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer Fund, Ice Rink Fund and Sewer
Transportation Fund,

» Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allioccate costs internally ameng the City's
various functioens. The City uses an internal service fund to
account for the financing of insurance services, human resource
gervices, information services, central services and business
administration services provided to the other funds of the City,
both governmental and enterprise, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City’s major proprietary funds include the Inter-municipal Sewer
Fund, Sewer Fund, and Ice Rink Fund. The Sewer Transportation Fund is
the City’s only non-major proprietary fund.

o Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit
of parties outside the government and are not reflected in the
government-wide statements, because the City cannot use these assets
te finance operations. The City's fiduciary funds are all classified
as trust and agency funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

The City has three pensien trust funds and two agency funds.
Individual fund data for each of these fund types is provided in the
form of combining statements in supplementary information.

e The notes to the basic financial statements provide additiconal disclosures
required by governmental accounting standards and provide information te
assist the reader in understanding the City’s financial condition. The notes

to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial
statements.

Other Required Supplementary Information is additional information consisting of a
budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with
budget and certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits te its employees

Other supplementary information consisting of combining statements referred to

earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, trust funds and agency
funds, are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

{continued)



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLKE:

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

This is the first year the City implemented the new financial reporting
requirements of GASB Statements No. 34, 36, 37, 38 and 41. The changes from the
prior years’ report include a new format and basis of accounting for the basic
financial statements. Since this is the first year to report all activities using
this new approach, a comparison of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Changes in Net Assets to the prior year is not possible. However, in future
years, this section will explain the differences between the components of current
and prior year assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.

our analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Assets. One
of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is: is the City as
a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities? The
statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about
the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this
question. In these statements, we divide the City into three kinds of activities:

« Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s basic services are
reported here, including general government, sanitation, public
safety, highways and streets, public works, parks and recreation,
community development and planning and other departments and programs.
Property taxes, occupation privilege taxes, earned income taxes,
business privilege taxes, charges for services, and grants finance
most of these activities.

» Buginess-Type Activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover
the cost of certain services that it provides. The City Sewer System
is reported here, as is the City Ice Arena.

* Component Units - The City includes two separate legal entities in
this report: the York City Redevelopment Authority and City of York
General Authority. Although legally separate, these component units
are important because the City is legally accountable for them.
Additional financial information regarding the City’s component units
can be found in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities of this report. The separately audited annual financial
report of the City of York General Authority may be obtained from the
Ccity Finance Office or at the City website at www.yorkecity.org under
budget and finance.

(continued)



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The analysis below focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of the
City’s govermmental and business type activities.

TABLE 1

CITY OF YORK
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government
Assets
Cash and investments § 4,463,922 5 17,190,085 § 21,654,007
Other assets 15,948,871 18,323,878 34,272,847
Capital assels 53,871,748 55,671,762 109,543,508
Total assets 74,284,539 91,185,823 165,470,362
Liabilities
Other liabilities 15,927,029 5,089,241 21,016,270
Long term liabilities 50,571,447 35,968,271 B&,540,718
Total liabilities 66,488,476 41,058,512 107,556,988
Net Asgets
Capital assets, net of
related debt 37,030,943 31,059,720 68,090,663
Restricted 3,461,070 9,785,400 13,246,470
Unrestricted (32,705,950) 9,282,191 (23,423,759)
Total net assets $ 7,786,063 § 50,127,311 & 57,913,374

Cash and investments represent only 6% of the City of York’s total governmental
activities assets. Of this amount, 79% or §3,523,130 is restricted, primarily for
health initiatives. Additionally, the City operates and maintains the York City
Waste Water Treatment Plant, 102 miles of sewer lines, and one pumping station
which is reported in business-type activities. The City's waste-water treatment
plant serves seven municipalities in addition to the City of York. The $17,190,085
in cash and investments allows for future maintenance, repailr and replacement as
well as improvement te our sewer facilities,

{continued)



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The governmental activities capital assets value is net of $40,001,656, or 43%, of
accumuiated depreciation. For the business type activities the capital asset value
is net of 539,556,922, or 41.5%, of accumulated depreciation. These percentage
rates for depreciaticn reflect that the capital assets of the City, as a whole,
have almost 60% of their useful life remaining and also reflect the City's
commitment to effective and efficient use of resources to provide services.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the
government’s financial position. The City of York's assets exceeded its
liabilities by $57,913,374 for year ending December 31, 2003.

By far the largest portion of the City’'s net assets, 118%, is the City's
investment in capital assets. (i.e. streets, street-lights, buildings, land,
playgrounds, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt used tec acquire
those assets. These capital assets are used by the City of York to provide
services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for Ffuture
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported nest of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
come from other sources, since the assets cannot be used to liguidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (23%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Of the $13,246,470 that
is restricted: $3,186,958 is the wvalue of the Albert Weyer Trust and is
permanently restricted for health initistives, while the remaining amount is
restricted to use for streets, debt service, insurance and construction.

The City of Yeork’s unrestricted net asset balance of ($23,423,759) results from

the recording of unfunded pension bonds, General Obligation Bonds, Series A and B
of 1995 and Series C of 1998, in the amount of $34,784,627.

(continued)



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

TABLE 2
CITY OF YORK

CONDENSED STATEMENT CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

Governmental Business-Type
Revenue Activities Activities
Charges for services 5 10,205,009 10,500,662
Operating grants and contributions 9,690,323 -
Capital grants and comntributions 189,201 774,000
Property taxes 9,911,635 -
Payment in lieu of taxes 717,075 -
Business taxes 2,730,190 -
Personal taxes 2,086,897 -
Unrestricted grants 1,615,077 -
Unrestricted investment earnings 500,925 1,716,182
Other - (13,245)
Total 37,670,136 12,977,599
EXpenses
CGeneral government 6,333,491 -
Sanitation 2,662,032 -
Public safety 14,788,773 -
Highways and streets 1,085,099 -
Public works 4,105,530 -
Parks and recreation 1,575,125 -
Community development and planning 4,432,568 -
Other departments and programs 2,516,886 -
Interest on long-term debt 3,153,311 -
Intermunicipal sewer - 3,836,323
Sewer - 7,499,166
Ice arena - 188,170
Sewer transportation - 3,877
Total 40,652,815 11,527,536
Change in net assets before transfers and
extraordinary items (2,982,679) 1,450,063
Transfers 1,818,250 {1,818,250)
Extraordinary item - {1,396,638)
Change in net assets {1,164,429) (1,764,825}
Net assets beginning of year 8,950,492 51,892,136
Net assets end of year & 7,786,063 50,127,311
(continued)



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

During 1995 and again during 19898, the City issued capital appreciation bonds and
notes (bonds). Capital appreciation bonds are sold at a deep discount and
amortized up to the face wvalue of the bonds. Annual amortizaticon results in
interest expense for governmental activities in the government-wide £inancial
statements, but not in the governmental fund financial statements. Additionally,
repayment of debt, while consuming current financial resources in the governmental
funds, has no effect on the net agsets of the governmental activities.
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
governmental activities, the cost of the capital assets i1s allocated over their
estimated useful 1ife and reported as depreciation expense. The decrease in net
assets of ¢governmental activities resulted primarily from the accretion of capital
appreciation debt in the amount of 51,845,627, offset by principal payments on
long-term debt of $2,321,219 and depreciation of capital assets in the amount of
53,454,258, offset against purchases of capital assets of $766,093.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

16,000,000 -

14.000,000

12.000,000

16,006,000

[J Expenses
Revenues

8,000,000

£.000,000 -

4.000,000 -

2,000,000 -

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
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The City’'s business-type activities include the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer
Fund, Jce Rink Fund and Sewer Transportation Fund.

The city sewer system is comprised of the sewage collecticon infrastructure, one
pumping station and the staff and equipment for the maintenance thereof. B8.3% of
the revenue is derived from charges for services. Expenses include the City's
share of the annual debt payment on the WWTP and the costs of treatment of the
waste water. The costs of treatment are paid to the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund
toward the cost of the operation of the waste water treatment plant and the debt
service is paid to the Sewer Authority. Sewer rates were last increased in January
2002,

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The City operates a state of the art regional waste water treatment plant that
provides service to seven municipalities in addition to the City. Each
municipality, including the City, pays a share of the bond debt on the facility
and pays the actual cost of treatment for the waste water that the municipality
sends to the facility for treatment. In addition, the facility provides industrial
pretreatment testing and levies a charge by volume for certain material contained
in the waste water sent by industrial facilities. Each year in October, the City
estimates the waste water treatment charge per thousand gallons and the quantity
of waste water that will be sent to the plant by each municipality and then
communicates the estimated costs for treatment in the subseguent year to each
municipality. At the end of each year, the actual costs of treatment is
determined. Municipalities that have paid more than necessary receive a credit on
their fourth payment and municipalities that have paid too little must make up the
difference in the first guarter of the subsequent year. Waste water treatment
charges are calculated by deducting from the actual expenditures of the plant all
non-operating revenue, then all operating revenue that comes from customers other
than the municipalities is deducted from the expenditures. The remainder is
divided to determine the cost per thousand gallons that is charged to the
participating municipalities.

A portion of the waste water that flows to the WWIP from other municipalities is
transported through the City sewer interceptor system. Each township pays the City
4.04 per thousand gallons for the waste water that flows through the city system
from the municipality. These payments are held by the City in the Sewer
Transportation Fund for the maintenance, repair and replacement of the sewer lines
through which the Intermunicipal waste water flows.

The York City Ice Arena is a two pad ice skating sports facility that was built
and put into service in 2001. The Arena was built by the York City Recreation
Corporation (YCRC) using tax exempt proceeds from a bond issue guaranteed by the
city. It is situated on land cowned by the City in the Memorial Park Recreation
Complex. The Arena provides ice skating and other recreational programs and
opportunities to the general public for a fee and also provides facilities for
other public social events.

In November 2003, the YCRC notified the City that i1t was unable to meet its bond
payment obligation. The City honored the loan guarantee and transferred resources
into the debt service account at M&T Bank to make the bond payments. The City has
exercised its remedies under the lease and loan agreement with the YCRC and has
assumed control of the Ice Arena

The City assumed operational control of the York City Ice Arena in Novewmber 2003.
Actguisition of the Ice Arena resulted in an extraordinary loss in the amount of
$1,396,638, a significant portion of the decrease in net assets of the business-
type activities for the year ended December 31, 2003. The revenue and expenditures
in these financial statements represent the operations of the facility for the
last two months of 2003. The City operated the facility from January 1, 2004 to
August 31, 2004. On September 1, 2004, Rink Management Services Corporation
commenced managing the facility under contract with the City.

{continued)

12



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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intermunicipal Sewer Sewer lce Rink Sewer Transportation

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the City's financing regquirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a governmeni's net resources available
for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of 53,166,108, The City's unresserved fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government's discretion, was ($501,027) at December
31, 2003. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay debt
service in the amount of $274,962, 2) to hold in perpetuity for health initiatives
in the amount of $3,186,958 and 3} for a variety cof other purposes in the amount
of $205,215.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At December 31, 2003,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $40,038. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare reserved fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents less than one percent
of total general fund expenditures.

(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSTION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The fund balance of the City’s general fund decreased by $528,089 during the year
ended December 31, 2003. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

. "he City decreased the amount of milage allocated to the general fund
from 9.54 mills to 8.77 mills.

. The revenue received for building permits was significantly below budget.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of §$274,962, all of which is
reserved for the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance for the
vear ended December 31, 2003 in the debt service fund was $303,543. This increase
was due to the City increasing the amount of millage allocated to debt service
expenditures from .85 mills to 1.62 mills.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, the Sewer Fund and the
Tee Rink Fund amounted to $-, $7,600,052 and $60,181, respectively. The total
decrease in net assets for these funds was $141,948, $S04,813 and $1,384,299,
respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already
been addressed in the dlscussion of the City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund

Revenue and expenditures Ffor most of the City’s general operations are accounted
in the City’s General Fund. These operations include general government,
sanitation, public safety, highways and streets, public works, parks and
recreation, community development and planning and other departments and programs.
For the year ended December 31, 2003, the final revenue and transfers in budget
was $30,335,459 and the fipal expenditure and transfers out budget was
$30,233,541.

The City adopts a budget pursuant to the City Charter and ordinances by December
31 of the preceding year. Over the course of the budget year, budget transfers and
budget amendments occur. Budget transfers are approved by the Dbusiness
administrator within the limits of discretion granted to that officer by the City
Ordinances . Budget amendments are submitted for approval to City Council in the
nature of a bill, which, after adoption by council, becomes an ordinance. Budget
transfers and amendments are adopted to make resources available to pay for
expenses that may have exceeded the amounts anticipated and to account for revenue
and expenditures associated with grants that become available during the budget
year. Transfers and amendments are also used to move IesOurces from contingency
accounts within funds to accounts where the resources are reguired.

(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

In 2003, the single largest revenue item in General Fund was taxes at 512,380,342.
Actual taxes included $7,673,63% in real estate taxes, $2,353,459 in business
taxes, $2,353,252 in income and occupational privilege taxes. The second largest
item includes charges for services which at $5,947,434 includes sanitation fees of
$3,766,084. Grants and Contributions, at $6,006,741 includes a gignificant porticn
of a %4,000,000 capital improvement grant from the Commonwealth for the renovation
of the Strand Capitol.

The City had significant negative variances between final budget and actual in
several general fund revenue items. The wmost significant variance was in the
licenses and permits line item in the amount of $888,698. This shortfall was due
to several anticipated construction projects anticipated to begin during the year
ended December 31, 2003 year, which did not materialize for wvarious reasons. Thus,
building permit fees that were expected for those projects were not received.
Another significant shortfall was in the grants and contributions line item. This
variance is associated with Strand Capitol not requesting a drawdown of the full
$4,000,000 capital improvement grant during the year ended becember 31, 2003.

Total General Fund expenditures were $28,405,139 for the year ended December 31,
2003. The single most expensive activity in the general fund is public safety,
which is comprised of police and fire-rescue services, which amounts to
415,267,532, or 53.7% of the General Fund actual expenditures for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The final budget for the gemeral government expenditures was
over four million more than the original budget. That increase was largely the
result of the Commonwealth RACP grant pass through for the renovations of the
Strand Capitol Performing Arts Center.

a1l but one of the expenditure variances between £inal budget and actual wexe
positive. The largest was in general government at §872,751, and like its
concomitant revenue, it was primarily due to the Strand Capitol capital grant from
the Commonwealth that was not fully drawn down and spent. The variance of $349,047
in Community Development and Planning is the result of grantees not fully drawing
down grant funds. The public safety variance of $261,251 is the result of the
Police Department and the Department of Fire/Rescue Services completing the year
glightly under budget.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and husiness-type
activities as of December 31, 2003, amounts to $109,543,508 (net of accumulated
depreciation) . This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, land
improvements, equipment and furniture and infrastructure. The total increase in
the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 3 percent
(a 5 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 12 percent increase for
business-type activities).

(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Major capital asset event during the current figcal year included the following:

e Various infrastructure projects, including road and walkway improvements,
were completed at a cost of $1597,676.

e The City purchased several vehicles, including a $118,033 street sweeper
and police vehicles in the amount of $93,610.

e $100,000 was paid for restoration of the Farguhar Park pool.

s+ TIn November 2003, the City assumed control of the JIce Arena and the
carrying value of the ice rink and related capital assets were added to
the City's business-type activity capital assets in the amount of
$5,911,116.

¢« Various building and system additions and improvements were completed in
the Sewer Fund’s waste water treatment plant at a cost of §2,280,657.

additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 10 on
page 54 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt cutstanding
of §51,130,028. Revenue bonds in the amount of 40,165,314 represent bonds secured
solely by specified revenue sources.

The City's total debt increased by $5,149,127 during the year ended December 31,
2003. The key factor in this increase was that in November 2003, the City assumed
control of the Ice Arena and the related revenue bonds were added to the City’'s
business-type activities long-term debt in the amount of $7,305,000.

additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 13 on
page 60 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES:

The City of York faces the same financial challenges as most other 3% Class
Cities in Pennsylvania: a fully developed real estate tax base and rising costs.
The tax base is stagnant and increases and decreases by smail percentage points,
while the costs of operation increase in accordance the increases in costs in the
general economy. In 2003, the City reduced the workforce by 27 positions through
layoffs, early retirements and elimination of vacant positions. Twenty one people
left city employment.

Notwithstanding the staff reductions the City’s regquired contributions to the
employee pension funds increased from 624,157 in 2002 to $1,100,392 in 2003, an
increase of $476,235. For 2004, the pension comntribution increased to $1,B882,002,
an increase of §791,610. Almost all of the pension contributions are for public
safety and, thus, come from the General Fund.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The 2004 General Fund budget increased by about $2,000,000 dollars after the
adjustment for the capital grant for the Strand Capitel Performing Arts Center.
The increases are due to the increased pension contribution, rising insurance
costs and increased labor costs. Half of that increase is being funded through the
use of reserves while the other $1,000,000 is being funded by a 10% real estate
tax lncrease.

Pension Funds

The City maintains three pension funds: Police Pension Fund, Firefighters Pension
Fund and the Officers and Employees Pension Fund. Payments from the pension funds
in the form of refunds of contributions, pension payouts and payment for expenses
are subject to approval by the respective boards that oversee the use of plan
resources. The pension funds are pooled for investment purposes and managed by a
Pension Fund Board of Trustees. Membership on the pension boards and the board of
trustees is prescribed by Act 205 and York City ordinance.

The value of the assets in the pooled pension trust at December 31, 2002 was
460,064,159, At December 31, 2003, the value of the pooled pension trust assets
had increased to $70,393,635 for an increase of 1B.2%.

In 1994, an arbitrator awarded the police and £fire union a pension escalator
retroactive to 1992. The escalator formula would have added 3.7 million dollars
per year for ten years to the MMO and an additional 1.9 million for ten years. The
public Employees Retirement Commission (PERC) authorized the City to suspend
making the payments to the pension fund so long as the issue was in litigation or
negotiation. In May 2004, the PERC ordered the City to recognize the liakility in
its actuarial report and to begin funding the pension escalator benefit. The
Ccity’s actuaries have advised the City that the pension escalator benefit
constitutes a 25.33 million dollar unfunded accrued liability, which will require
annual increases in the City MMO of just under $3 million per year. In addition,
the benefit adds an annual noxmal cost of about $561,000.

The City and the PERC reached an agreement that the City would recognize the
liability in a revised 2003 actuarial report which must be filed by January 15,
2005. The City must begin funding the liability in 2006. The City is researching
various funding strategies, including a bond issue and pursuing an amendment to
act 205 to provide therein for a longer-term amortization than the statute
currently provides.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASBSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts
Taxes
Accounts
Loans
interest
Internal balances
Due from component unit
Due from cither governments
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets
Cash and cash eguivalents
Investments, ak fair value
Notes receivable
LeaBe rentals receivable
Capital assets, less accuamlated
depreciation and amortizatien
Deferred charges, net of

accumulated amortization

Total assets

LIABILITIRES
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities
Accrued tiabilities
Due te primary government
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Escrowed funds
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Primary Goverrment

Governmental

Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

Component.

Units

Total

8 940.792

5 4,454,960

& 5,385,752

$ 842,085

% 6,237,837

3,378,010 - 3.378,9010 - 3,378,010
2,496,188 1,455,745 3,951,933 78,009 4,029,942
4,166,398 - 4,166,358 - 4,166,398
- 26,643 26,643 583 27,226

(1062, 712) 162,712 - - -
378,294 27,868 403,163 - 403,163
167.467 77,400 244,867 - 244,867
- 153,881 153,081 - 153,881
247,253 - 247,283 246,318 273,872
374,027 4.147.265 4,521,292 1,584.8597 6,106.189
3,148,103 B.E87,BED 11,736,963 - 131,736.963
5,220,973 - 5,220,973 - 5,220.973
“ 16,475.626 16,479,626 - 16,479,626
53.87%1,746 55,671,762 109,543,508 B.149,1928 117.692,707
= = - 359,309 355,308
74,284,538 51,185,823 165,470,362 11,040,401 176,518,763
1,874,805 184,845 2,088,650 28,413 2,088,063
214,652 134,218 1,048,870 - 1,048,870
- - - 403,163 403,163
24,430 264.969 355,399 502.033 861.432
3,629,656 108,345 9,739,001 526,BBO 10,265,881
- - - 371,664 37%L,664
3,413,486 4,395,864 7,869,350 620,416 8,429,786
50,571,447 35,860,271 86,540,718 B,228,569 94,770,287
£6,49B6,476 41,058, 5312 107,556, 588 i0,6B2,158 118,239,146

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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NET ASSETS

Invested in capital asgets.

net of related debt
Restricted for:

Highways and streets

Parks and recreation

Community development and

planning

Health initiatives

Workers' compensation

Debt service

Construction

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component

Aetivities Activities Total Units Total
37,030,543 31,059,720 68,090,683 (341,497) 67,748,166
ils, &35 - 115,636 - 115,636
(537,881} - {537,981} - (537, 581)
85,5561 - 85,551 ~ 85,551
3,187,902 - 3,187,302 - 31,187,902
35,000 - 335.000 “ 335,000
274,962 4,330,757 4.605,719 831, 448 5,437,167
- 5,454,643 5,454,643 138,538 5.5583,161
{32,7D5,950) 5,282,191 {23,423, 759) (270,226) {23,693,0885})
] 7,786,063 £ 50,127,311 5 57,913,374 S 358,243 5 BB,271,617
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental
General Service Funds Funds
hssets
Restrieted cash and cash equivalents 3 - o1 - s 39,027 -1 39,027
Restricted investments, at fair value - - 3,145,103 3,149,103
Receivables,
Loans (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of %33,000 in the General Fund,
774,215 in Other Governmental Funds) 187,000 - 3,979,398 4,166,398
Taxes (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of 5675,560 in the General
Fund, $92,182 in the Debt Service Fund,
$75,785 in the Other Governmental Funds) 3,201,245 95,074 BO,691 3,378,010
Accourts (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $2,152,672 in the CGeneral
Fund) 1,374,604 - 1,139,658 2,494,262
Notes receivable - 5,190,003 - 5,180,005
Due from other funds 741,428 271,128 66,4135 1,078,551
Due from other governments - - 167,467 167,467
pue from component units 375,254 - - 375,254
Total assets % 5,879,571 $ 5,557,207 5 B,601,779 $20,038,557
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses s 615,118 5 58 $ 424,525 § 1,039,701
Accrued wages payable 459,043 - 37,443 496,536
Due to cther funds 1,498,873 - 865,861 2,364,734
Due Lo cther governments - - 94,430 94,430
Deferred revenues 3,266,449 5,282,187 4,328,412 12,877,048
Total liabilities 5,839,533 5,282,245 5,750,871 16,872,449
rFund balance {deficit)
Reserved for
Debt service - 274,962 - 274,962
Health initiatives - - 3,186,958 3,186,958
Community development - - 205,215 208,215
Unreserved, reported in
General fund 40,038 - - 40,038
Special revenue funds - - (542, 068) (541, 0865)
Total fund balances 40,038 274,962 2,851,108 3,166,108
wotal iizbilities and fund bhalances 5 5,878,571 % 5,557,207 $ 8,601,779 $20,038,557

See accompanying notes to basic

21
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds

Governmental capital zssets
Less accumulated depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current peried and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds

Workers' compensation

Bonds payvable

Notes payable

Capitalized lease obligation
Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable

Internal service funds used by management to charge
the costs of insurance services, human resource
services, information services, central services
and business administration services to individual
funds. The assets and lisbilities of the intewrnal
services fund are inciuded in governmental activities
in the statement of net assets.

Internal service fund net assets
Adjustment related to enterprise funds

Net assets of governmental activities

83,873,402

_40,001 ,656)_

{36,298,084)
{16, 750,5885)
(92,667)
{838,261}

_{sa02,735)

2,136,380
(284,205)

§ 3,166,108

53,871,746

3,278,360

(54,382,336}

1,B52, 185

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental
General Sarvice Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $12,083, 760 $ 1,324,618 $ 866,640 $14,285,018
Licenses and permits 1,658,595 - - 1,658,585
Fines and forfeits 931,780 - - 931, 78%0
Grants and contributions 5,427,611 1,615,077 4,917,640 11,960,328
Charges for services 5,705,361 - 864,049 6,569,410
Loan repayments 148, B&6 780,433 396,000 1,325,299
Interest 54,202 2,676 120,355 177,233
Gain on investments - - 306,333 306,333
Miscellaneous 122,688 - 146,033 268,732
Total revenues 26,142,884 3,722,804 7,617,050 37,482,738
Expenditures
Current
General government 5,130,923 5,385 97,874 6,234,282
Sanitation 2,646,708 - - 2,646,709
Public safety 15,321,606 - - 15,321,606
Highways and streets 478,678 - 711, 886 1,150,564
public works 1,733,270 - - 1,793,270
Parks and recreation - - 1,345,805 1,345,805
Community development and planning 1,902,548 - 2,532,123 4,434,671
Other departments and programs 81,653 - 2,420,318 2,501,872
Debt service
principal retirements - 2,160,000 161,218 2,321,219
Interest - 1,253,B68 84,878 1,343,844
Capital outlay - - 351,545 351,549
Total expenditures 28,355,387 3,419,261 7,710,853 35,485,501
Excesg (deficiency} of revenues
over {under} expenditures {2,212,503} A03,543 {93,803) (2,002,763)
oOther financing sources {uses)
proceeds from the issuance of debt - - 118,033 118,033
Transfers in 1,878,282 - 682,647 2,560,855
Transfers out (193,838} - (548,811} {742,649)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,684,414 - 251, BEY 1,936,283
Net change in fund balances {52B,089) 303,543 158,066 (66,480)
Fund balances {defiecit) - beginning of year 568,127 (28,581) 2,693,042 3,232,588
fund balances - end of year ] 40,038 $ 274,962 % 2,851,108 4 3,166,108

See accompanying notes to basic
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds S {66,480)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlays 766,093
Depreciation expense {1,454,258) (2,688,165}

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds. 118,039

The issuasnce of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Weither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets.

Debt issued or incurred {118,033)
Principal repayments 2,321,218 2,203,186

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Compensated absences 104,253
Acerued interest 36,160
Amortization of bond discounts {1,B45,627) {1,705,214)

Internal service funds are used by management to

charge the costs of insurance services, human

resource services, information services, central
services and business administration services to
individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities
of the internal service fund is reported within
governmental activities.

Internal sexrvice fund change in net assets 1,137,481
Adjustment related to enterprise funds (163,286) 574,205
Change in net assets of governmental activities 5 {1,164,428}

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
Business-rype Activitier - Enterprise Funds
Other
Enterprise
Fungd Internal
Intermunieipal Sawer Ice Rink Sewer Service
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Iransportation Total Fund
Aasets
Current apsets
cash and cash equivalents $ 1.659.535 § 1.381.815 5 81,207 5 1.322.343 § 4,45%4.960 -] 940.792
Regeivablen
fease rentals. current - 526,354 v - G26.354 -
Accrued interest receivabie - 26.543 - - 26,841 -
Accounts recelivable {lesa aliowance for
doubtful accounts of $3.280.446) 460,092 E9D.415 106G, 244 4.594 1.455.748 %.9286
Inventory - - 153.981 - 153,981 -
Prepaid expenses - - - - - 247,253
pue from other funds - - - 10.416 10.418 1,467,236
fue from component units - 27.0869 - - 27.06% -
pue from other governments - 77,400 - - 71,4006 -
Total current assets 2,119,687 3,340,436 335,432 1,337,783 7,333,368 2,657,207
Restricted asgebs
tash and cash equivalents - 4.147.265 - - 4,147,265 335.000
Investments - 8,587,860 - w B, 587,860 -
fotal restricted aosets w 12,735,125 - - 12,735,138 335,000
Honcurrenkt aseets
lease rentals receivabie, long term - 15.553.272 - - 15.553.272 -
Capital assets. net of accumiated
depreciation - 42,811,242 5,860,520 - 55,871, 762 -
Tetal noncurrent assets - 65,364,514 5,860,520 - ‘71,225,034 -
Total assets 2,119,687 81,440,335 5,185,852 1,337,753 81,083,527 2,992,207
Liabilitiesn
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 143,458 16.071 25.278 - 184,845 B35.104
Accrued wages payable 56,451 4,285 7,984 - 73.728 15.381
Accrued interest £0.498 €0,458 -
pue to other Eunds 10,416 - 181.4583 - 181,508 -
Due to other governments 264,969 - - n 264.569 -
Deferred revenue = 108,345 - - 109,345 -
Total current liabilities 475,334 134,701 275,351 - BB5,2B& BED, 485
Curyent liabilities payable from
restricted apsets
Current portion of acrrued compensated
akpences 5,943 1.344 - - 10.287 -
Current portion of capitalized lease
obligations - 5.577 - - 5.577 -
Current portion nf bonds payable - 4,115,000 265, 000 - 4,380,060 -
Total current liabilivies payable
from restricted resounces 6,943 4,121,521 265, 0D0 - 4,395,864 -
wongurrent liabilities
Accrued compengated absences 145.545 24.825 - - 170.370 5.332
Capitaiized lease chligations - 13.587 - - 13.587 -
Bonde outstanding - 28,745,334 7,040,000 - 35,785,314 -
Tetal noncurrent liabilities 145,845 2B, 783,726 7,040,000 - 35,869,271 5,332
Total liabilities 629,822 33,040,248 7,580,282 - 43,250,423 A55,817
Het Ansebs
Invested in capital assets. net of
related debt - A2.504.200 {1.444. 480} - 31.059.720 -
Restricted
Debt service - 4,330,757 - - 4,330,757 -
Congtruction L1.485.865 3.564.778 - - 5.454.643 -
Workers' compensation - - - - - 335.000
ynrestricted - 7.500, 952 &£0,181 1,337,751 B, 457,586 3,803,380
total net assets 5 {1,384,299) 5 40,843,106 $ 2,136,390

5 1,489 865

$ 48,389,787

5 1,237,753

Adjustment te reflect the consclidatien of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of businesy-type activities

284,205

§ 50,127,311

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, RXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Business-type Achbivities - Enterprise Funds

Internal
Intermunieipal Sawer Service
Sewar Fund Funid fransportation Total Fund
oOperating revenues
Charges for bervicesn § 4.352.083 § 4.9B6,671 5.41D.795 5 7.461.374
Rental income - - 117.634 -
Revenue from other local governments - " 53.250 -
Mincellaneous income 29,163 B, NGB 39,983 -
Toral pperating revenues 4,381,246 4,994,739 9,669,662 7,461,374
Operating expences
rerconnel services 1.509.114 332,448 1.853.365 567,645
veilities 582.131 - 552.131 -
Treatment Costse - 1.464.641 1,464.64) -
Contractual services 158,732 164,355 323.887 -
vrofepsional services 117.619 £57.130 774,549 214.136
Materials and supplies 283.953 47.703 A6E. 1T 312,281
Sludge 560,686 - 660.6B6 -
hdministrative - ~ 23.445 113,841
Health insurance claims - - - 3.588.278
Insurance premiums - - - 7B6.BE3
Yorker o compensation ingurance - - - 446,323
Depreciation - 2.261.985 2.312.581 -
Miscellaneous 737,364 184,544 942,412 501,873
fotal operating expenset 3,569,798 5,112,806 a,214,.154 6,341,242
Operating income {loss) 411,447 {11B, DE7) 455,508 1,120,332
Nonoperating revenue {expenser)
investment income 14.539 1,607,585 1.716,182 17.358
Intergovernmental grants - 774.000 774,600 -
springettebury capacity sale - B31.86¢ 831.000 -
Loos on sale of capital assets - {13.245) (13,245) -
Interest cxpense - {2,416,170) {2,476, 668} -
Total neneperating revenue
{expenpes) 14,535 863,170 633,268 17,358
Change in net astets before transfers
and extraordinary itema 426,386 745.101 1.285.777 1.137.451
Transfers out {568.334}) {1.249.5816} {1.818.250) -
Extraordinary items
Loan guarantee loss - - {1,3156,6318) “
Change in net aspets {141.948) (504.0813) {1.928,111) 1.137.491
Het assets - beginning of year -
restated 1,631,813 48,584,600 998,833
Net assets - end of year 5 1,469,068 5 4B, 35%, 787 § 2,116,380
ndjuctment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activitien
163,286

related to enterprise funds

Change in net assets of business-type activities

§ (1,764,825}

See accompanying notes to basiec financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Buginess-Lype hctivities - Enterprise Funds
Other
Enterprise
Fund internal
Intermunicipal Seway Ice Rink Sewer Service
Sewer Fund Fund Fung fransportation foral Fund
cagh flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users 5 4.158.460 $ 4.,915.108 § 100,183 s ER.256 § 9.282,0067 § T.R75,748
Payments to ouppliers {3.07x.8BBE) (%,935,794) {15.209) {14.293) {5,037.271) {5.454.042)
Payments to employess {1,510,422) {333,618) (3,759} - {1,B47,789) (563,273)
Het cash provided by (used in)
operating activities {421,847) 2,645,696 51,125 73,863 2,376,837 1,250,433
cagh Elows from noncapital £inancing
activities
Trangfers oub {568.334} {1.24%.936) - - {1.018.250} -
Springettsbury capacity cale - Eil, 800 - - g31, 000 -
Het cash used in noncapital
financing activitier (568,134} {418,516} - - (587,250} -
Caph flows from capital and related
financing activities
Capital outlays - {2.524.662) - - (2.524.662) -
Intergovernmental grants - 774.000 - - 774.000 -
Principal receipts on lease rentals
receivable 813,723 - - 513,723 -
Principal payments on bonds - (4.250.000) - - {4.250,000) -
Principal payments on capital lease - (4.291) - - {4,290 -
Interest paid - {7,670) -~ - {1,870) -
Het cagh uped in capital and
related financing activities - (5,0598,300) - - (5,098, 900) -
cagh Elowe from investing activities
purchases of investment securities - - - -
Sales of investment securities - 436,600 - - 436,000 -
Investment income 14,5358 1,618,571 B2 131,576 1,647,568 17,358
MHet casit provided by investing
activities 14,538 2,054,871 B2 11,574 2,081,568 17,359
Net increase [decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents {977.242) {837,145} 81.207 87.539 {1.625.648) 1,275,792
Cash and cash eguivalents
- beginning of year 2,616,837 6,356,228 - 1,234,804 14,227,870 -
Caph and cash equivalents - end of year § 1,658,535 § 5,519,080 5 £1,207 S 1,322,343 § B, 602,225 $ 1,275,782
Reconciliation of operating ingome
to net cagh provided by {used in}
operating activities
Gperating income {loss) $ 4311.447 5 {115.9087) S 72.758 $ 89.373 § 455.508 $ 1.120.132
Adjustments to reconecile operating
ineeme {lops) to net cash provided
by {(used in) operating activitvies
Deprecistion - 2.261.985 50.556 B 2,312,581 E
{increase) decresse in:
hecounts receivable (389.727) {3.42% {3150, 244) (4.9594) {50D,3582) (683}
Prepaid expenset - - 24,758 - 24.758 112,328
e £rpm pther funds 259.045 685,649 “ (1p.4i6) 708,478 -
pue from component wnits - (27.869) - - {27.869) -
pue from other governments 2B%. 747 (77.400) - - 212.347 {184.937)
prepaid expenpes - - - -
Increase {decrease) ing
Accountp payable and accrued expenses 39.188 {7%.401) 25.276 - 114.937} Z207.228
Accrued wages payable B.469 (564) 7.%84 ~ 15.88% 2.982
Accrued compensated ahsences 9.1 (608) - - {10.383) 1.380
veferred revenue - 1.1%6 - - 1.186 -
Due to octher funds {679.433) - - - {679.433) -
Pue to gther governments {132, BDE) - - - {3112, B08) -~
Het cash provided by (used in)
gperating activitien § {423,847} $ 2,645,686 5 81,128 $ 73, 861 5 2,376,937 5 1,258,433
Hoti caph items
Liabilities (net) transferred as a
repult of loan guarantee loss 5 - g - 5 1,186,638 5 - $ 1,396,638 5 -
proceeds from capital lease obiigations $ - § 21,458 E) - s - s 23,455 £} -
Acguisition of equipment through capital
lease obligations § - g 23,458 s - $ - § 23,455 § -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,691,121 $ 159,285
Investments, at fair value 64,702,514 -
Other receivables - 10,481
Total assets 70,393,635 169,766
Liabilities )
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - 169,766
Total liabilities - 8 165,766
Net assets
Eeld in trust for pension benefits § 70,393,635

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

28



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIJA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Additions
Contributions
Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Supplemental state aid
Total contributions
Investment income

Interest and dividend income
Net appreciation of investments

Less investwment expense
Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments

Net increase

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
beginning of year

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

29

$

544,835
1,100,382
101,402

1,746,629

2,053,423
11,776,272

13,829,685

{362,872)

13,466,823

15,213,452

(4,884,018)

10,329,436

60,064,159

70,393,635




CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -

COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
Redevelopment General
Authority Authority Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents £ E04,783 $ 237,302 5 B42,085
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 387,844 1,187,053 1,584,897
Accounts receivable 78,009 - 78,009
Accrued interest - 583 583
Prepaid expenses 26,319 - 26,319
Total current asseis 1,106,955 1,424,938 2,531,883
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation of $141,003 and
and $4,006,326) 3,384,062 4,765,137 8,149,198
Capitalized bond costs (net of
accumulated amortization of 85,391 263,918 353,309
8,122 and $226,218)
Total noncurrent assets 3,479,453 5,029,055 B,508,508
Total assets 4,586,408 §,453,993 11,040,401
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - 28,413 28,413
Due to primary governments 28,8689 373,294 403,163
Due to other governments 502,033 - 502,033
Deferred revenues - 526,880 526,880
Escrowed funds 371,664 - 371,664
Current portion of bonds payable 70,000 - 70,000
Current portion of note payable - 550,436 550,436
Total current liabilities 973,566 1,479,023 2,452,589
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable 3,590,000 - 3,590,000
Note payable - 4,639,569 4,638,569
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,550,000 4,639,568 8,229,569
Total liabilities 4,563,566 6,118,592 10,682,158
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt (180,547) (160,950) {341,497)
Restricted
Debt Service 11,668 819,780 B311,448
Construcition 26,180 112,338 138,518
Unrestricted 165,541 {435,767) {270,226}
Total net assets g 22,B42 s 335,401 5 358,243

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of York, Pennsylvania (City), was founded in 1741 and chartered as
a city in 1787. The City is a third class city operating under the Third
Class City/Optional Charter Law of Penmsylvania. The City's core services
are public works, housing programs, recreation, economic development, public
gsafety, health and environmental services, sewer maintenance, and wastewater
treatment.

The accounting policies of the City conform with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Bmerica (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units except as noted below. The following is a summary of the
more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The City used guidance contained in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASE) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity (GASE No. 14) to
evaluate the possible inclusion of related entities (Authorities, Boards,
Councils, ete.) within its reporting entity. The criteria used by the City
for ineclusion are financial accountability and the nature and significance
of the relationship. In determining financial accountability in a given
case, the City reviews the applicability of the following criteria.

The City is financially accountable for:

. Organizations that make up the legal city entity.

. Legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and the City is able
to impose its will om the organization or if there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, oxr
impose specific financial burdens on the ¢ity as defined below.

Impose its Will - If the City can significantly influence the
programs, projects, or activities of, or the level of services
performed or provided by, the organizaticn.

Financial Benefit or Burden - Exists if the City (1) isg
entitled to the organization’s resources or (2) iz legally
obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance
the deficits of, or provide support to, the organization or (3)
is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

. organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City. Fiscal
dependency is established if the organization is unable to adopt its

budget, levy taxes ©or set rates oI charges, or issue bonded debt
without approval by the City.

(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FIKANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Reporting Entity (Cont’d)

Based on the foregeoing criteria, the reporting entity has been defined to
include all the fund types For which the City is financially accountable and
entities with which there is a significant relationship. Specific
information on the mnature of the various component units and a description
of how the aforementioned criteria have been considered in determining
whether to include such units in the City's financial statements are
provided in the following paragraphs.

Blended Component Unit

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the primary goverament‘s (the City) operations and so
data from these units are combined with data of the City. The component unit
which meets this criteria is the City of York Sewer Authority (Sewer
Buthority) .

The Sewer Authority was formed in 1950 under the Municipality Buthorities
Act of 1945 for the purpose of acquiring, maintaining, and leasing the sewer
system to the City. The five member board is nominated by the Mayor and
appointed by City Council. The Sewer Authority’s only financial transactions
are the financing and maintaining of the City’'s sewer system. The Sewer
authority’s financial statements are blended with the City’s sewer activity
and are accounted for as the Sewer Fund, an Enterprise Fund in the City’'s
basic financial statements. Separately published financial statements of the
Sewer Authority are available for public inspection in the City’s Accounting
office.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units which are not blended as part of the primary government are
discretely presented, which entails reporting component unit financial data
in a column separate from the financial data of the primary government. The
component units which meet this criteria are the City of York General
Authority (General Authority) and the Redevelopment Authority of the City of
York {(Redevelopment Authority).

The General Authority was formed in 1995 under the Municipality Authorities
Act of 1945 (Act) for all of the purposes authorized under the Act, without
limitation, except for approval by the City of certain projects to be
undertaken by the General BAuthority as specified in its Articles of
Incorporation. The General Authority is governed by a seven-member board,
all of whom are appointed by City Council. The General Authority’s primary
operations to date have been to operate and maintain a municipal parking
system. The City expressly reserves the right which exists under the Act to
approve any plan of the General Authority as to making business improvements

{(continued)

33



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Reporting Entity (Cont’d)
Discretely Presented Component Units (Cont’d)

or providing administrative services, as those are defined in the Act. The
General Authority issued debt on January 1, 195% for the purpose of
purchasing the City’s parking system. The debt was subseguently refunded and
replaced by a note payable to the City. The General Authority publishes
separate financial statements which are available in the City’s Accounting
Cifice.

The Redevelopment Authority was formed in 1950 under the Pennsylvania Urban
Redevelopment Law, Act of 1945 (Public Law - 8991, as amended) . The
Redevelopment Authority is administered by a five member board, all of whom
are appointed by the Mayor. The Redevelopment Authority acquires vacant and
dilapidated residential and commercial properties for the City to
rehabilitate for sale to low- to moderate-income home buyers or Zfor the
purpose of promoting commercial or industrial development. The Redevelopment
Authority’s financial transactions are the acquisition and sale of
properties for the City and to administer section 8 housing assistance
payments. The Redevelopment Authority, in January of 2002, issued debt for
the purpose of comstructing the Susguehanna Commerce Center Parking Garage.
The Redevelopment Authority does not publish separate financial statements.

Related Crganization

The City Council is also responsible for appointing the wmembers of the
Housing Authority of the City of York, but the City’s accountability for
this organization does not extend beyond making such appointments.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets
and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units,
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely, to a significant extent on fees and charges to
external parties for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Cont’d)}

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly bemnefit from goods, services or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
regources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund £inancial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers
revenues to he available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. The City considers real estate, earned income,
franchise taxes, iatergovernmental revenue, departmental earnings and
investment income as meeting the available criteria. All other governmental
fund revenues are recorded as cash ig received because they are generally
not measurable until actually received. In determining when to recognize
intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and
contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance.

(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Cont’d)

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on general long-term
obligations are recognized when due. Prepaid items and inventory purchases
are reported as expenditures in the year when the items are purchased.
Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer
pension contributions are reported to the extent that they mature each
period.

The City reports deferred revenue on its governmental fund balance sheet.
Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet the
smeasurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period.
Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the government
before it has a legal c¢laim to them, as when grant monies are received prior
te the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed
from the governmental fund balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City.
It is used for all financial resources except those reguired to be accounted
for in another fund.

pebt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and reiated costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Inter-municipal Sewer Fund - The inter-municipal sewer fund accounts for
revenues and expenses associlated with the CGreater York Area Wastewater
Treatment Plant.

Sewer Fund - The sewer fund is used to account for revenues and expenses
associated with providing sanitary sewer services to City regsidents. The
principal revenue source for this fund is user fees collected from City
property owners.

Tee Rink Fund - In October of 2003 the City, by resolution, took possession
of the skating rink formerly operated by the York Recreation Corporation.
The ice rink fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated
with the operation of these facilities.

{continued}
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Measurement Focusg, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
{Cont’d)

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund is used to account for the
financing of insurance services, human resource services, information
services, central services and business administration services provided to
the other funds of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Pension Trust Funds - Accounts for the accumulation of rescurces for pension
benefit payments and the withdrawals of qualified distributions for members
of the City police force, <City firefighters, and City officers and
employees. The City sponsors and administers these plans which are defined
benefit plans covering substantially all employees.

Agency Funds - BAccounts for situations where the City'’s role is purely
custodial in nature (assets ecqual liabilities) and do not involve the
measurement of results of operations.

The City follows GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary
Fund Accounting (Statement No. 20), for reporting and disclosure purposes.
As permitted by Statement No. 20, the City has elected not to apply
Pinancial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued after November
30, 1989 unless the GASB specifically adopts the FASB Statement or
Interpretation.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated fxom
the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule
are charges between the enterprise funds and other functions of the
government . Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the City’'s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is

the City’'s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
regources as they are needed.

(continued}
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Cash and Cash Eguivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, highly liguid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash egquivalents.

Regstricted Cash, Cash Eguivalents, and Investments

In 1906, the Albert $. Weyer Hospital Trust was established and, at the
expiration of one hundred years, is begueathed to the City for the
establishment of a hospital for the underprivileged. During 1984, the City
petitioned the court alleging that the principal and income of said Trust
would be insufficient to establish such a hospital. Upon court order, the
Trust was modified so that income from the Trust is paid annually to the
city for the purpose of establishing and operating a mobile screening
hospital for the underprivileged. The City established the Weyer Trust Fund,
a permanent fund, for this purpose. Cash, cash egquivalents, and investments
of the Weyer Trust Fund are classified as restricted since their use is
limited by court order.

Cash and investments in the sewer fund that are in bond trust funds are
restricted to the purposes set forth by the bonds.

cash and investments in the internal service fund that are reserved for
workers’ compensation claims are restricted to the purposes set forth in the
City’s workers’ compensation insurance binder.

Investments
Investments are stated at fair value.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The City’s policy is to provide an allowance for loans, taxes, and accounts
receivable based on past collection experience.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity Dbetween funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
either “due to/from other funds” {i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). During the course of operations, numerous transactions
occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered.
These receivables and payables are classified as “due to/from other funds”
on the balance sheet. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

(continued}
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Capital Assetls

Capital assets, which include property, plant, eguipment and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, dams and similar items}, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful 1life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost
is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donmation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the assets or materially extend lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of
capital assets of business-type activities is dincluded as part of the
capitalized wvalue of the assets constructed.

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 15 to 75 years
Equipnment and furniture 5 to 20 years
Infrastructure 10 to 75 years

Vested compensated absences

vested compensated absences represents vested portions of accumulated unpaid
vacation, =sick pay and other employee benefit amounts. It is the City’'s
policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but
umused vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit amounts, which will be
paid to employees upon separation £rom City service. All compensated
absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and
fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations and retirements.

{(continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Long-term Cbligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the related obligation using the
effective interest method. Debt is reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related obligatiom.

Tn the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current
period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Accretion of Interest

Discounts on principal-only treasury strip investments are accreted over the
lives of the investments as an adjustment to vyield using the effective
interest method. Discounts on the zero-coupon Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds
- Series of 1990, Federally Taxable General Obligation Bonds - Series A of
1995, General Obligation Bonds - Series B of 1998 and General Obligation
Refunding Notes - Series D of 1998 are accreted over the life of the
respective bonds using the effective interest method.

Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are ¢lassified in
the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups
all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one component of
net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, ceonstruction or
improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of
other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents the net assets of
the City, which are not restricted for any project or other purpose.

{continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Fund Equity and Net Assets (Cont’d)

In the fund fipancial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are
classified in two separate categories. The two categories, and their general
meaningsg, are as follows:

Reserved Fund Balance - This category represents that portion of fund
equity which has been legally segregated for specific purposes.

Unreserved Fund Balance -~ This category represents that portion of
fund equity which is available for appropriation and expenditure in
future periods.

Self-insurance

The cCity is primarily self-insured for health insurance., Various
governmental funds and the proprietary funds are assessed charges based on
historical loss experience with premiums being treated as quasi-external
transactions. The City funds loss claims when incurred based upon the
evaluation of an independent third party administrator together with claims
incurred but not reported. The internal service fund accounts for the
self-insurance program. The City accrues claims incurred but not paid at
year end, taking into consideration claims incurred but not reported.

Nonrecourse Debt Issues

The City {through the General Authority and the Redevelopment Authority)
participates in various bond issues for which it has limited liability.
Acting solely in an agency capacity, the City serves as a financing conduit,
bringing the wultimate borrower and the ultimate lender together to do
business. Although the City is a party to the trust indenture with the
trustee, the agreements are structured such that there is no recourse
against the City in the case of default. As such, the corresponding debt is
not reflected on the City’'s statement of net assets. The amount of
nonrecourse debt issues is unavailable at December 31, 2003.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of BAmerica requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the finaneial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

{continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

in May of 2002, the GASB issued Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether
Certain Organizations Are Component Units - An Amendment to GASE Statement
No. 14.7 This Statement amends Statement No. 14 to provide additional
guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the primary
government is not financially accountable should be reported as component
units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government. The City is reguired to adopt Statement No. 32 for their
calendar year 2004 financial statements.

Tn March of 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment
Risk Disclosures—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3.7 This statement
modifies or eliminates the certain disclosures required under GASB Statement
No. 3. The City is required to adopt Statement No. 40 for their calendar
vear 2005 financial statements.

In November of 2003, the GASB issued BStatement No. 42 “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance
Recoveries.” This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is considered
impaired when its service utility has declined significantly and
unexpectedly. This Statement also clarifies and establishes accounting
requirements for insurance recoveries. The City iz reqguired to adopt
Statement No. 42 for their calendar year 2005 financial statements.

IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

As of January 1, 2003, the City implemented the following Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements:

STATEMENTS

e No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - Ffor State and Local Governments

s No. 36 - Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues -
An amendment of GASB Statement No. 33

» No. 37 - Basic Financial Statements - Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus

e No. 3B - Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures

» No. 41 - Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Perspective Differences - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34

{continued)
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IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT (Cont’d)

INTERPRETATION

e No. 6

-~ Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and

Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The above

pronouncements are all related to the new financial reporting

requirements for state and local governments. The City was required to
implement the new reguirements for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The more significant of the changes affecting the City as required by the
new standards include:

» Management’'s discussion and analysis

* Basic
o)

=]

financial statements

Government-wide financial statements, prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting;
Fund financial statements, consisting of a series of statements
that focus on a government’'s major governmental funds;

Schedules to reconcile the fund financial statements to the
government-wide financial statements; and

Notes to the basic financial statements.

(continued)
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IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT (Cont’d)

As a result of implementing these pronouncements for the year ended December
31, 2003, the following restatements were made to beginning fund balance and

net asset accounts:

Primary Government

Fund balances of general, special revenue, debt
service, capital project and expendable trust funds,
as of becember 31, 2002

Bdd: governmental capital assets, including general
fixed assets and infrastructure as of
December 31, 2002

Deduct: accumulated depreciation as of
December 31, 2002 on above capital assets

Peduct: general obligation bonds payable and other
long-term liakilities at December 31, 2002

Deduct: compensated absences payable at
December 31, 2002

Deduct: Accrued interest payable at December 31, 2002
Add: Deferred revenue at December 31, 2002

Add: Internal service funds used by management
to charge the costs of insurance services,
human resource services, infeormation services,
central services and business administratiomn
services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the
statement of net assets, net of the adjustment
related to enterprise funds, as of
December 31, 2002

Net assets of governmental activities, as of
December 31, 2002

(continued)
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$ 3,232,588

83,107,309
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{53,498,899)

(942,514)
(438,895)
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IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT (Cont’d)

Retained earnings of the enterprise funds, as
of December 31, 2002 § 11,038,436

Contributed capital of the enterprise funds, as
of December 31, 2002 11,104,831

Adjustment to capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation, as of December 31, 2002 29,627,950

Net assets of enterprise funds, as of
December 31, 2002 - restated 51,771,217

Add: Adjustment to reflect consclidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds,
as of December 31, 2002 120,919

Net assets of business-type activities, as of
December 31, 2002 § 51,892,136

Component Units

Fund balance of the Redevelopment Authority, as $ 288,272
of December 31, 2002

Report capital assets, net of accumulated

Depreciation, as of December 31, 2002 3,383,484
Report capitalized bond costs, net of accumulated

Amortization, as of December 31, 2002 99,532
Report bonds payable, as of December 31, 2002 (3,725,000)

Net assets of the Redevelopment Authority,
as of December 31, 2002 -~ restated $ 16,288

BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The ¢City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

1.

During August, the various departments and agencies of the City
prepare their individual budgets for the ensuing calendar year. These
individual budgets are submitted to the Business Administration Office
(Administration) and include informatior om the vyear-to-date
expenditures, projected expenditures for the remainder of the current
vear, and the next year'’s budget.

(continued)
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BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING {Cont’d)

2. Administration consolidates all departmental and agency budgets into a
comprehensive preliminary budget for the entire City. The preliminary
budget details both proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

3. Each director meets with Administration as considered necessary to
review his individual budgets as set forth in the preliminary City
budget in the beginning of October.

4. The Mayor holds hearings pursuant to the Third Class City Code and the
Consolidated Ordinances of the City of York. Each department head is
required to appear before the Mayor in a public hearing for the budget
request.

5. The Administration finalizes the budget and presents 1t to City
Council (Council) by the second meeting in November.

6. In considering the budget, Council has the authority to reduce any
line item by a vote of at least three members. In addition, Council
may increase or add a line item to a budget by a vote of four members.

7. The proposed budget ordinance must be available for public inspection
in the Office of the City Clerk hetween the first and second readings.

8. Prior to December 31, Council adopts the final budget by enacting an
appropriate ordinance.

The Business Administrator has the authority to approve the transfer of
unexpended funds between accounts except in the following instances:

1. Transfers of more than 5% of an appropriation item within that fund,
and

2. Transfers of more than 5% of a department’'s appropriated budget in
that fund.

In those instances and when additional unappropriated funds are needed,
Council's approval 1s reguired. Council has approved all expenditures in
excess of the original budget as a result of the adoption of the subsequent
years budget document. The City does not amend the original budget in
accordance with the Third Class Code.

{continued)
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BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (Cont’d)
The following fund types and funds have legally adopted annual budgets:
1. General fund.

2. Special revenue funds as follows: recreation fund, liguid fuels,
community development block grant fund, and the state health grant
fund.

3. 1995 and 1998 debt service funds.
4. Capital projects fund.
5. Bll proprietary funds.

6. Permanent fund - the Weyer Trust Fund.

FUND DEFICITS/DEFICIT NET ASSETS

As of December 31, 2003, three funds each had a deficit fund balance or net
assets. The City's management has addressed this situation and has prepared
the following action plan to eliminate these deficits in a timely manner:

Recreation Fund - The fund defiecit, at December 31, 2003, of $537,981,
is financed by loans from the general fund as a result of revenue
falling short of the budget.

gpecial Projects Fund - The fund deficit, at December 31, 2003, of
5119,664, is a result of a loan guaranteed by the land proceeds fund.
The City will eliminate the deficit through charges to other funds.

Tee Rink Fund - The fund deficit, at December 31, 2003, of %1,384,299,
is a result of assuming the capital assets and debt of the York
Recreation Corporation.

During 2003, the City overspent available funds in several of its funds
resulting in large cash deficits. The City’s general fund did not have
sufficient funds to cover the cash overdrafts. The City covered the
overdrafts by using cash from other funds.

PROPERTY TAXES

The City is permitted by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth of
pennsylvania to levy property taxes up to 25 mills on every dollar of
adjusted assessed valuation for general purposes, exclusive of the
regquirements for the payment of interest and principal on funded debt. The
current tax levy of the City is 11.390 mills including amounts for debt
service and recreation.

(continued)
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PROPERTY TAXES (Cont’d)

Based uJupon assessed valuations provided by the County of York, the City
bills and collects its own real estate taxes. The schedule for real estate
taxes levied for 2003, was as follows:

February 15, 2003 - levy date
February 15 — April 14, 2003 - 2% discount period
April 15 - June 16, 2003 - face payment period
June 17 - December 31, 2003 - 10% penalty period
January 1, 2004 - lien date

By the first Monday in January of the year subsequent to levy, the City
turns over all delinquent taxes to the County of York Tax Claim Bureau which
collects these taxes on behalf of the City.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to the Pennsylvania
Third Class City Code and prudent business practices. City deposits must be
held in insured, federally regulated banks or financial institutions and
must be fully collateralized in accordance with state statutes. Except for
investments in the pension trust funds, permissible investments include
direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.3. government agencies;
certificates of deposit issued by insured banks, bank and trust companies,
and savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements with maturities not
to exceed 30 days, secured by U.5. government obligations with collateral to
ke delivered to a third-party custodian; shares of registered investment
companies whose portfoliocs consist solely of government securities; general
obligation bonds of any state, Pennsylvania subdivisions, or any of its
agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the
issuing entity and having the highest rating of a recognized beond rating
agency; and pooled funds of public agencies of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. Investments in the pensicn trust fund are not restricted. The
peolicy alsec allows investment of funds received as a result of debt issuance
in any security in which the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania may invest.

The City follows the practice of pooling funds (excluding the pension trust
funds and any other fund which is legally or contractually required to be
segregated) for shert-term investment purposes. The City’s investment pool
is maintained with a local financial institution which requires the City to
maintain a minimum balance of $3,500,000. Interest earnings are allocated to
funds based upon the average balance of funds invested in the pool over the
previous six month period. The allocation of the pocled investment is
included in the respective fund’s cash and cash equivalents.

(continued)
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DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

The deposits and investments of the fiduclary funds are administered by
trustees and are held separately from those of public funds.

The deposits of the City at December 31, 2003, are categorized to indicate
the level of credit risk assumed by the City. Category 1 includes deposits
which are fully insured or colliateralized with securities held by the City
or its agent in the City’'s name. Category 2 includes deposits which are
cellateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the City’'s name. Category 3 includes deposits
which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the pledging financial
institution or the pledging institution’'s trust department or agent, but not
in the City’'s name. The City does not have any Category 2 deposits at
December 31, 2003,

Total Bank Carrying
Category 1 Category 3 Unclassified Balance Value
Unrestricted
Deposits:
Cash accounts $ 227,533 % 5,694,106 3§ - $ 5,921,639 $ 5,364,428
Money market
pools - - 6,017,737 6,017,737 5,881,730
Total unrestricted
Cash and cash
eguivalents 5 227,533 5 5,894,106 $ 6,017,737 § 11,939,376 $ 11,24¢,158
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Assets:
Governmental activities 3 940G, 792
Business-type activities 4,454,960
Fiduciary funds
Pension trust funds 5,691,121
Agency funds 159,285
Total primary government $ 11,246,158

Restricted cash and cash equivalents, of both the City and the General
Authority component unit, are comprised entirely of money market pocls at
December 31, 2003.

The General Authority component unit’s cash deposits were made up of
$132,333 insured cash and $104,969 of uninsured cash (Category 3). The
Redevelopment Authority component unit’s deposits were made up of $204,664
in insured cash and $79%7, 963 of uninsured cash (Category 3).

{continued)
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DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

The deposits in Category 3 consist of balances in excess of federal deposit
insurance limits. State statute reguires banks to maintain a pool of
collateral to cover these governmental deposits (except for deposits in
pension trust funds), however, the collateral is held by the bank in the
bank’s name. Money market accounts are not categorized as they are invested
in pooled funds and securities are not used as evidence of the deposit.

Investments of the City at December 31, 2003, are categorized according to
the level of credit risk assumed by the City. Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered and are held by the City or its
agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments with collateral held by the broker’s agent in the City’s name.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by =a
counterparty’s trust department or the counterparty, but not in the City’s
name. Mutual and collective trust funds, guaranteed investment contract
investments, and purchase and resale agreements have not been categorized
because securities are not used as evidence of the investment. The City does
not have any Category 2 and 3 investments at December 33, 20603.

Category Carrying
1 Unclassified Value
Unrestricted investments:
U.5. government obligations 5 4,436,445 =1 - 5 4,436,445
International bonds 400,612 - 400,612
Closed end mutual funds - 656,773 656,773
Corporate bonds 13,384,591 - 13,384,591
Preferred stocks 3,348,900 - 3,348,500
Common stocks 42,475,183 - 42,475,193
Totral unrestricted investments 564,045,741 $ 656,773 § 64,702,514
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net
Assets
Fidugiary funds $ 64,702,514
Restricted investments:
U.8. government obligations $ 4,330,710 3 - S 4,330,710
Guaranteed investment contracts - 4,257,150 4,257,150
Mutual and collective trust
funds - 3,149,103 3,149,103
Toral restricted investments $ 4,330,710 5 7,406,253 $ 11,736,963
keconciliation to Statement of Net
Assets
Governmental activities $ 3,149,103
Buginess-type activities B,587,860
Total primary government % 11,736,963
(continued)
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LOANS RECEIVABLE
York scattered sites loans

During 2001, the City entered into three separate loan agreements under a
project know as the York Scattered Sites Project for the purpose of
rehabilitating seven historic buildings containing 31 residential rental
units and 6 commercial spaces located within the City of York’s historic
west end. The loans for the projects are as follows:

In September of 2001, the City of York entered into a promissory note
agreement to lend $1,000,000 to a local non-preofit corperation for the
purpose of rehabilitation, preserving and/or enhancing seven properties
containing 31 dwelling unites for rent. The full face of the note plus
payment of 1% simple interest per year will become due on October 1, 2017.
At this time, the City may demand payment or, in lieu of payment, they wmay
elect one of two options, which ineclude the right of £first refusal to
purchase the property or to extend the loan for an additional 15 years. If
the City elects to extend the loan for an additional 15 years, the entire
principal amount and any accrued interest will be forgiven at the end of the
15 year period. The loan receivable is recorded within the particular fund
from which the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, §522,750 is recorded
within the Community Development Block Grant Fund and $327,250 is recorded
in the Home Fund, net of an allowance of $150,000. The entire loan balance
has been recorded as deferred revenue as of December 31, 2003.

In September of 2001, the City of York entered inte a promissory note
agreement to lend $335,000 to a Pennsylvania limited partnership for the
purpose of rehabilitating & commercial properties within the City. The loan
is secured by a mortgage with interest charged at 3% per annum. The full
amount of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2031. The loan
receivable, in the amount of $284,750, net of an allowance of $50,250, is
recorded within the Section 108 Loan Fund and the entire lcan balance has
been recorded as deferred revenue as of December 31, 2003.

In September of 2001, the City of York entered into a promissory note
agreement to lend $220,000 to a local non-profit corporation for the purpose
of rehabilitating 6 commercial properties within the City. The loan is
secured by a mortgage with interest charged at 1% per annum. The full amount
of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2017. The loan
receivable, in the amount of §187,000, net of an allowance of $33,000, is
recorded within the General Fund and the entire loan balance has been
recorded as deferred revenue as of December 31, 2003.

Historic Fairmount Project Loan

in November of 2002, the City of York entered into a loan agreement with a
Pennsylvania limited partnership in which the City has agreed to loan a
maximum of &1,050,000 of funds from the Section 108 Loan Fund, the CDBG

Program, and the Home Program for the purpose of the acguisition,
rehabilitation and construction of 14 parcels of real estate, to provide 38

{continued)
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units of affordable housing for general occupancy in the City of York. The
loan bears no interest and the principal shall be due and payable December
31, 2035, As of December 31, 2003 a total amount of $715,790 has been
advanced on this loan. The loan receivable is recorded within the particular
fund in which the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, $26,442 is recorded
within the Home Fund, $264,854 is recorded within the Community Development
Block Grant Fund, and $317,126 is recorded within the Section 108 Fund, net
of an allowance of $107,368. The entire loan balance has been recorded as
deferred revenue as of December 31, 2003.

DUE TO/FROM AND OPERATING TRANSFER ACCOUNT

Individual due to/from other fund balances at December 31,
follows:

2003, were as

Due from bue to

Fund

other funds

other funds

General fund
Debt service fund
Other governmental funds

Intermunicipal sewer fund

Ice rink fund
Other enterprise fund
Internal service fund

Total primary government

$ 741,428
271,128
66,435

10,416
1,467,236

$ 1,498,873
865,861
10,416
181,493

$ 2,556,643

$ 2,556,643

A reconciliation of the interfund transfers for the year ended Decembexr 31,

2003, is as feollows:

General fund

Other governmental funds
Intermunicipal sewer fund
Sewer fund

Total primary government

Operating
Transfers
In

Operating
transfers
out

$§ 1,878,252
682,647

% 193,838
548,811
568,334

1,249,916

$ 2,560,899

$ 2,560,899

(continued)
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LEASE RENTAIL RECEIVABLES

The City has subleased the right to connect to the City’s sewage system to
six surrounding municipalities, whereby the City would receive, treat, and
dispose of the municipalities’ sewage. The municipalities are required to
participate in payment of operating expenses, debt service on the guaranteed
sewer revenue bonds, Series of 1950 and Series of 1992, and pay a service
charge based on usage for the express purpose of maintenance, repair, and
replacement of the existing interceptor system. This service charge is
accounted for in the Sewer Fund.

Minimum lease rentals receivable as of December 31, 2003 are:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 2,078,730
2005 2,057,885
2006 1,943,885
2007 1,543,885
2008 1,943,885
2009 1,943,885
2010 1,943,885
2011 1,943,885
2012 1,941,075
2013 1,941,075
2014 1,943,885
2015 1,943,885
2016 1,941,071
Total minimum lease rentals receivable 25,511,026
Less amount representing interest (at an average rate cof 6.7%) {9,031,400)
Present value of minimum lease rentals receivable 16,479,626
Less current installments of lease rentals 926,354
Lease rentals, excluding current installments $ 15,553,272
(continued}
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10. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the vear ended December 31,

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land

Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings
Land improvements
Equipment and furniture
Infrastructure

Total capital assets,
being depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings
Land improvements
Equipment and furniture
Infrastructure

Total accumuiated
depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

2003 was as follows:

Retirements
Beginning and
of Year Additions Di.spositions End of Year
{Restated)
$ 5,485, 381 $ - $ - $ 5,485,381
8,601,993 125,800 - B,727,793
2,358,784 - - 2,358,784
11,028,048 442,616 - 11,470,664
65,633,103 197,677 - 65,830,780
87,621,928 766,093 - 88,388,021
(2,557,587 (162,8B80) - (2,720,467)
{1,231,958) (114,321) - {1,346,279)
{6,089,327) (879, 630) - (6,968, 857)
(26,668,526) (2,297,421 - (28,965,953
{36,547,398) {3,454,258) - (40,001, 656)
51,074,530 {2,688, 165} - 48,386,365
$56,559,911  $(2,688,165) $ - 553,871,746

(continued)
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10. CAPITAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Primary Government {Cont’d)

Additions/ Retirements

Beginning Transfers and
of Year In Digpositions End of Year
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 3 17,445 5 - g - s 17,445
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings 70,057,085 7,781,561 (311,970) 77,526,676
Land improvements 22,145 - 22,145
Equipment and furniture 1,416,211 558,346 - 1,974,557
Infrastructure 15,593,681 97,180 - 15,650,861
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 87,066,977 8,459,232 {311,870) 95,214,239
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings (29,891,363) (1,976,730) 288,725 (31,569,368)
Land improvements - {(351) - {381}
Bquipment and furniture (1,104,097} (71,564) - (1,175,661)
Infrastructure (6,550,606} {263, 936) - (6,814,542)
Total accumulated
depreciation (37,546,066} (2,312,581) 298,725 {319,555,522)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 49,520,911 6,146,651 {(13,245) 55,654,317
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $49,538,356 $ 6,146,651 § (13,245) 455,671,762
{continued)
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Brimary Government {(Cont’d)}
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 44,523
Sanitation 31,042
Public safety 600,460
Highways and streets 67,645
Public works 2,365,844
Parks and recreation 282,558
Community development and planning 31,185
Other departments and programs 15,387
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 3,439,524

Internal service fund depreciation expense allocated
te business-type activities 14,734

Total additions to accumulated depreciation for
governmental activities § 3,454,258

Business-type activities:
Sewer 5 2,261,985
Ice rink 50,596

Total depreciation and amortization expenses -
enterprise funds 2,312,581

Internal service fund depreciation expense allocated
to business-type activities 14,734

Total depreciation and amortization expenses -
business-type activities $ 2,327,315

(continued)
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10. CAPITAL ASSETS (Cort’d)

Component Units

Additions/ Retirements/
Beginning Transfers Transfers
of Year in Out End of Year

Redevelopment Authority
Capital aseets, not being
depreciated:
Construction-in-progress $ 3,353,484 $ 171,881 5{3,525,065) % -

Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings and
improvements " 3,525,065 - 3,525,065

Less accumulated
depreciation for: - {141,003} - {141,003)

Tetal capital assets,
being depreciation, net - 3,384,062 - 3,384,062

Redevelopment Ruthority
capital assets, net 5 3,353,484 § 3,585,643 5{3,525,065) § 3,384,062

Governmental Authority:
Capital assets, being
gepreciated:
Buildings and
improvements S B,620,744 & 150,718 3 - 5 B,771,463

Less accumilated
depreciation (3,410,683) (585,643) - (4,006,326)

General Authority
Capital assets, net § 5,210,061 $  (244,924) & - $ 4,765,137

11. LOAN GUARANTEES

Local Businesses

As of December 31, 2003, the City has granted loan guarantees aggregating
approximately $162,500 on borrowings by several local businesses. It is
reasonably possible that the City will be required to make payments under
its guarantees. No amount has been accrued for the City’s obligation under
its guaranty arrangements.

{continued)
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LOAN GUARANTEES (Cont’d)
The York Recreation Corporation

The York Recreation Corporation (Corporation) was established during 2001 as
an exempt organization under the Internal Revenue Code Section 501{c}) (3).
The purpose of the Corporation is to build and operate a new twin surface
ice sports facility, and to convert the existing rink into a multi-purpose
recreation facility. The Corporation was to utilize the revenue from these
facilities to maintain and promote the facility and te initiate and enhance
the recreational opportunities in the City.

Oon May 1, 2001, the City of York General Authority (Authority), a discretely
presented component unit of the City, issued non-recourse Guaranteed Revenue
Bonds Series of 2001 (Bonds) in the amount of $7,305,000. Under the related
Loan Agreement, the Corporation received the bond proceeds and was to make
installment payments of both principal and interest to the trustee. In
connection therewith, the City guaranteed the timely payment of the
principal and interest on the Bonds. The guaranty is a general obligation of
the City, secured by the City’s full faith and credit and taxing power.

tnder a lease agreement between the City and the Corporatiom signed on May
24, 2001, the Corporation leased the Memorial Park Ice Skating Rink,
together with the equipment and furnishings/fixtures for the term of twenty
years for an annual rent of 46,000, with the option to renew the lease for
an additional ten years. In addition to the rent, the Corporation will pay
to the City, all net revenue that is in excess of the Corporation’s
operating expenses, reasonable reserve payments and all other annual
payments regquired under the loan cobligation discussed above.

The York Recreation Corporation did not have the cash flow necessary to fund
their November 1, 2003 debt service payment and, therefore, the City had to
fund this payment. In addition, the Corporation was unable to make the
required payments under the lease and loan agreements. On October 14, 2603
the City and the Corporation, by resolution, agreed that the Corporation
surrender possession of the skating rink, all records and personal property
as consideration for the City making payment of the Corporation’s debt
service obligation. At that time, the assets and liabilities of the Ice Rink
were assumed by the City and the operating activities subsequent to Octcber
14, 2003 are recorded by the City in the Ice Rink Fund, an enterprise fund.

{continued)
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TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES OF 2003

In January of 2003, the City borrowed 55,000,000 in the form of a Tax and
Revenue Anticipation Note, Series of 2003, bearing interest at an annual
rate of 1.9%. Total interest paid during the year was $92,097. The entire
balance of the note was paid in full by the City in December of 2003.

Tax anticipation note transactions for the year ended December 31, 2003 were
as follows:

Qutstanding at December 31, 2002 $ -

New borrowings 5,000,000

Repayments {5,000,000)

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 5 -
{continued)
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13.  LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2003, was as
follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Current
of Year Additions Accretion Retirements End of Year Fortion
Governmental activitles:
Loans from other
governmental entities 5 2.054,488 § - $ - s {138,8583) § 1,918,645 § 136,576
General obhligation
notes 14,525,65% - 446,288 {140, 008) 14,831,944 340,000
General obligation
bonds 26.918B,742 - 1,399,342 {2.020,000) 16,298,084 2,935,000
Capitalized lease
pbligations - 118,033 - {25.366) 92,667 21,910
Vested compensated
abhsences 546,466 - - {102,B73) 843,593 -
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $54,445,365 & 118,033 4§ 1,845,627 & (2,424,092} 553,884,933 5 3,413,486
Business-type activities:
Sewer revenue bonds 534,701,614 $ - 5 2,408,500 5 (4,250,000} %$32,860.314 § 4,115,000
Recreation revenue bonds - 7.305,080 - - 7,305.000 265,000
Capitalized lease
obligations - 23,455 - (4.281) 19.164 5,577
Vested compensated
absences 151,040 - - {10,383) 180,657 10,287
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $34,B52,854 & 7,328,455 $ 2,408,500 § {4,264,674) _$44,365,135 $ 4,395,884
Component Units
Beginning Current
cf Yeay Additions Accretion Retirements End of Year Poxtion
Redevelopment Authority
Revenue bonds $ 3,725,008 & -~ s - & (65,000) 5 3,660,000 § 70,600
General Authoritcy
Revenue bonds $ 5,719,927 % - 2 - § (529,932} § 5,190,045 § 550,436
{continued)

60



13.

CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Loans from Other Governmental Entities

The City received a $500,000 loan from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
through the Pennsylvania Department of Community Economic Development and
Affairs (DCED) (formerly Pennsylvania Department of Community Affairs (DCR))
in 19292, These funds were subsequently loaned to a local corporation for
building renovations. The loan is to be repaid te the City over 15 years,
The grant agreement regquires principal repayments from the local corporation
to be returned to DCED. The amount of outstanding principal payable to DCED
at December 31, 2003 waz $118,645.

Tn 2001, the City entered into a Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance
under Section 108 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The
funds under the contract were utilized for the purpose of rental housing
rehabilitation and other wvarious projects, as defined in the contract. In
August of 2002, trust certificates guaranteed by the Secretary of Housing
and Urban Development were sold in an underwritten public offering. These
trust certificates are backed by a pool comprised of the original note, as
defined by the loan contract. The balance due, as of December 31, 2003, was
$1,800,000.

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City
under loans from other governmental entities as of December 31, 2003 are as
follows:

Principal Interest
2004 ] 136,576 s 85,233
2005 137,315 86,134
2006 138,068 82,392
2007 106,685 78,416
2008 100,000 74,600
2009 - 2013 500,000 365,780
2014 - 2018 500,000 175,540
2018 - 2020 300,000 29,930

5 1,918,645 $ 922,025

(continued)
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

General Obligation Notes

The general cbligation notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the

City.

General obligation notes payable at December 31, 2003 is comprised of:

General Obligation
Refunding Notes,
Series I of 1588

General Obligation
Refunding Notes,
Series of 2002

General obligation notes
at December 31, 2003

Less unamortized discount
on zero coupon notes

General obligation notes,
net of discount,

at December 31, 2003

Issue Interest Amount
Amount Maturity Rates Qutstanding
57,634,459 Thru 2023 0% 515,445,000
5,285,000 Thru 2013 2%-3.8% 5,150,000
20,595,000
(5,763,056}
514,831,944

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City
under general obligation notes at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004
2005
2008
2007
2008
2008 - 2013
2014 - 2018
2018 - 2023

Unamortized discount

{continued)
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5 340,000 5 165,411
1,765,000 154,160
1,585,000 139,685
1,575,000 124,760
1,740,000 108,734
6,750,000 266,918
2,085,000 -
4,745,000 -
20,595,000 959,668
{5,763, 056) -

£14,831, 944
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

General Obligation Bonds

The general obligation bonds ocutstanding are backed by the full faith and

credit of the City.

The following is a summary of general obligation bond issues as of
December 31, 2003:
Maturity Interest Amount
Series value Maturity Rates outstanding

1935838 $76,030,000 Thru 2022 0.00%-6.5% §595,555,000
18585R8 1,790,000 Thru 2006 5.65%-6.3% 650,000
19588 4,440,000 Thru 2024 0% 4,440,000
1998C 3,905,000 Thru 2004 5.63%-5.9% 1,510,000
General obligation bonds at

becember 31, 2003 66,155,000

Less unamortized discount
on zerco coupon bonds
(Series A of 1995}
{(Series B of 1998}

General okligation bonds,
net of discount,

at December 31, 2003

(26,930,373}
(2,926,543}

$36,298,084

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City
under general cobligation bonds at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Principal Interest
2004 5 2,915,000 s 959,771
2005 1,655,000 776,161
20086 1,950,000 663,017
2007 2,115,000 534,441
2008 2,100,000 400,080
2005 -~ 2013 14,398,000 343,245
2014 - 2018 159,665,000 -
2018 - 2023 17,010,000 -
2024 4,350,000 -

66,155,000 3,676,725
Unamortized discount {29,856, 516) -

$36,298,084 $ 3,676,725

{continued)
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LLONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Prior Year Defeasgsance of Debt

The City has, from time to time, defeased certain debt by placing the
proceeds of new debt in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old debt. The trust account assets and the liability
of the defeased debt are not included in the City’s financial statements. At
December 31, 2003 the following defeased debt was outstanding:

Funds Defeased Debt
Ezcrowed Outstanding
ag of ag of
December 31, December 31,
2003 2003
General obligation bonds,
Series of 1983 $ 2,459,755 % 2,230,000
General obligation bonds,
Series A of 19895 4,652,513 3,565,422
Guaranteed sewer revenue bonds,
Series of 1977 2,305,641 2,545,000

$ 9,417,909 § 8,340,422

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds

The guaranteed sewer revenue bonds outstanding are backed by the full faith
and credit of the City.

guaranteed sewer revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2003 are comprised of
the following individual bond issue:

Issue Interest Amount
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding

1950 S 6%,775,000 2016 6.45%-7.10% & 50,805,000
Less unamortized discount

on zero coupon bonds (17,944,686)
General sewer revenue
bonds,

net of discount, at

December 31, 2003 $ 32,860,314

(continued)
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds {Cont’d)
The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City

under the guaranteed sewer revenue bonds at December 31, 2003 are as
fFollows:

Principal
2004 & 4,115,000
2005 4,080,600
2006 3,875,000
2007 3,875,000
2008 3,875,000
20098 to 2013 18,365,000
2014 to 2016 11,620,000

50,805,000
Unamortized discount (17,944 ,68B8)

§ 32,860,314

Economic Defeasance of Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds

on July 15, 1998 the York City Sewer Authority entered into an escrow
deposit agreement £for partial defeasance of the 1990 York City Sewer
Authority Bonds. $5,000,000 was deposited into this escrow, which was
obtained from capital grants from the federal government. This transaction
is not considered a legal defeasance and there was no verification of the
escrow performed. Because this is not a legal defeasance, the bonds are not
removed from the financial statements and the escrow transactions are
recorded. This transaction reduces the lease rental receivable from the
municipalities based upon the present value of the defeased bonds and the
percentage of the debt owed by the municipalities.

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2001

As described in Note 11, the York Recreation Corporation was unable to make
its required interest payment of $1B1,493 in November of 2003. As Guarantor
of the obligation, the City assumed the obligation. By resolution on October

14, 2003, the City took possession of the facilities and related personal
property in consideration for assuming this obligation.

(continued)
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2001
{Cont*d}

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (recreation
revenue bonds) payable at December 31, 2003 are comprised of the following
individual bond issue:

Issue Interest Amount
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding
thru
2001 $ 7,305,000 2021 4.50%-5.15% & 7,305,000

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City
under the guaranteed recreation revenue bonds at December 31, 2003 are as
folliows:

Principal Interest
2004 $ 265,000 4 357,023
2005 280,000 344,780
2006 280,000 331,935
2007 308, 000 319,157
2008 315,000 306,211
2009 - 2013 1,810,000 1,299,866
2014 - 2018 2,330,000 775,003
2019 - 2021 1,710,000 133,900

$ 7,305,000 $ 3,867,855

Capitalized Lease Obligations

The City leases certain equipment under long-term lease agreements which are
classified as capital leases. As of December 31, 2003, the governmental
activities and the business-type activities include equipment and furniture
under capital leases with a net book wvalue of $110,656 and $21,455,
respectively. The future minimum payments under capital leases and the
present value of the future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2003 are
as follows:

Business-
Governmental type
Year ending December 31, Activities Activities Total
2004 5 25,366 g 6,414 s 31,780
2005 25,366 6,414 31,780
2006 25,366 6,414 31,780
2007 25,3686 1,604 26,970
Total minimum lease payments 101,464 20,846 122,310
Less amount representing interest (8,797 {1,682) (10,479)
Present value of future minimum
lease payments ] 92,667 S 19,164 8 111,831

{continued)
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ILONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Redevelopment Authority Series of 2002 Revenue Bonds

In January of 2002, the Redevelopment Authority issued the Series of 2002
Variable Rate Demand/Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds for the amount of $3,725,000.
The Bonds were issued for the purpose of financing the Susquehanna Commerce
Center Garage Project. In order to enhance the marketability of the Bonds,
an irrevocable Letter of Credit has been issued concurrently with the
Series of 2002 Issue to provide payment for, and secure the payment of,
principal and interest on the Bonds. In addition a guaranty and suretyship
agreement was entered into by Creekside Investors, L.P. and BSusquehanna
Pfaltzgraff Company to act as a surety and unconditionally guarantee the
full and prompt payment when due of the Issuer’s bond obligations and all of
the Issuer’s letter of credit obligations. The maximum amount that may be
drawn on the Letter of Credit is $3,7B0,110. The Letter of Credit expires
January 25, 2007.

The Bonds are not general obligations of the Authority and do not pledge
the taxing power of the City of York. The principal and interest on these
Bonds i3 payable only from certain receipts dinecluding net parking
rentals, rates and other charges collected by the Authority for the use of
the parking facility.

The Redevelopment Authority has entered intc a management agreement with
Creekside Investors L.P. (Manager), whereby Creekside Investors, L.P. will
manage and operate the parking facilities on behalf of the Authority. Under
the agreement, the Manager, on behalf of the Authority, collects all parking
fees, rents, charges, and other income attributable to the parking
facilities. The Manager must deposit receipts in a segregated account to be
used to pay costs, fees and expenses iIncurred by the Manager in the
performance of its duties under the management agreement. In addition, the
Manager, on behalf of the Authority, pays amounts due to the bank
under the Letter of Credit Agreement and any amounts that may be dus to the
trustee. The management agreement term ends January 1, 2016 or such earlier
time as mutually agreeable to both the Manager and the Authority.

The Bonds initially bear interest at a variable rate, determined by the
Remarketing Agent (Agent). The rate 1z based on a minimum rate that, in the
judgment of the Agent, taking into account prevailing market conditions,
would enable the Agent to sell all of the Bonds on the adjustment date at a
price equal to the principal plus accrued interest. The Issuer may from time
to time, with written consent of the Credit Facility Provider, change the
interest rate on the Bonds from a variable to a fixed rate over one or more
consecutive fixed rate periods.

(continued)
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LLONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Redevelopment Authority Series of 2002 Revenue Bonds (Cont’d)

The Redevelopment Authority Series of 2002 Revenue Bonds payable at
December 31, 2003 are comprised of the following individual bend issue:

Issue Interest Amount
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding
Variable
thru {(1.38% at
2002 § 3,725,000 2027 12-31-03} $§ 3,660,000

The annual principal and interest reguirements for amounts due from the
Redevelopment Authority City under the 2002 revenue bonds using the 1.38%
interest rate in effect at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Principal Interest

2004 g 70,000 $ 50,307
2005 75,000 49,326
2006 B0, 000 48,277
2007 85,000 47,159
2008 90,000 45,871
2009 -~ 2013 535,000 205,533
2014 - 2018 730,000 167,020
2019 - 2023 380,000 109,308
2024 - 2027 1,015,000 33,238
§ 3,660,000 g 760,139

General Authority Parking System Revenue Note

In 1998, the City of York General Authority issued a Parking System Revenue
Note, Series of 1998 for $7,634,455 at 4.38% to the City. Payments of the
note are due semiannually from May 15, 1999 through November 15, 2011. This
note was issued to secure the general obligation note issued in connection
with the City’s refunding of the General Authority’s outstanding debt.
Maturities of the refunding debt, 1998 Series D, are from 2001 through 2023.
The remaining balance on the note at December 31, 2003 is 55,190,008 and is
recorded as a receivable in the City’s debt service fund.

{continued)
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
General Authority Parking System Revenue Note (Cont’d)
The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the

General Authority under the Parking System Revenue Notes at December 31,
2003 are as follows:

Principai Interest
2004 5 550,436 5 227,302
2005 575,428 203,185
2006 589,821 177,994
2007 628,541 151,724
2008 651,789 124,196
2009 - 2011 2,183,980 185,760

5 5,190,005 $ 1,080,171

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS)

Description of the Plans

The City maintains single-employer defined benefit plans for Police, Paid
Firefighters, and Officers and Employees which are accounted for as pension
trust funds. Participation in the plans is a required condition of
employment for all regular, full-time employees, except laborers paid on a
per diem basis. The plans do not issue separate reports.

The plans are governed by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth of
pennsylvania, as amended. At January 1, 2003, the date of the most recent
actuarial valuation, employees covered under the City’'s pension plans
consisted of:

Officers’ and Paid
Employees’ Police Firefighter
Pension Pension Pension
Plan Plan Plan
Retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 58 104 76
Terminated employees entitled to
deferred benefits 22 7 -
Active employees:
Vested 24 42 31
Partially vested 25 63 43
Total 269 216 150
{continued)
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) (Cont’d)
Degcription of the Plans (Cont’d}

Benefits for all three plans vary depending on specific agreements with each
group of employees. The Police are eligible for normal retirement at age 50
and 20 years service if hired before January 2, 1978, or after completion of
20 years and 6 months service if hired on or after January 2, 1978. Paid
Firefighters are eligible for normal retirement at age 50 and 20 years
gervice if hired before January 1, 1988, or at age 60 and 10 years service
if hired on or after January 1, 1988. Officers and Employees are eligible
for normal retirement at age 60 and after completion of 20 years service if
hired before January 1, 1978, or at age 60 and 5 years of service if hired
on or after January 1, 1978, or completion of 40 years of service regardless
of age.

After age 65, the monthly pension for Pald Firefighters is increased by 25%
of the dollar increase granted to active firemen of the highest pay grade,
up to a maximum pension of 50% of the current salary being paid to
firefighters of the highest pay grade. After age 65, the monthly pension for
the Police is increased by 25% of the dollar increase granted to active
patroimen of the highest pay grade.

Required employee contributions for Police are 5% of salary plus §1 per
month. Paid Firefighters contributions are 5% of salary plus $1 per month if
hired prior to January 1, 1988, and 4% of salary if hired on or after
January 1, 1988. Officers and Employees contributions are 2% plus 1/2% of
salary for service increment (if opted) if hired before January 1, 1878, or
2% of salary if hired on or after January 1, 1578,

Effective with the 1985 plan year, the City has participated in Level III of
the Act 205 Recovery Program, a Commenwealth of Pennsylvania program that
reduces contribution requirements and subsidizes underfunded pension plans,
Eligibility to participate in ZLevel III is based on the distress
determination of the City as provided by the Public Employee Retirement
Study Commission based on the procedures specified in Chapter 5 of Act 205.
The Commission has determined the City to be a severely distressed
municipality.

In 2003, state aid of $1,615,077 was deposited into the debt serviece fund to
pay part of the debt service payments for the 1995 general obligation bonds
issued to help fund the pension plan. Pages 63 to 65 of this report provide
six-year historical trend information on the contributions to the pension
plans as well as an analysis of funding progress.

{continued}
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYIL.VANIA

ROTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) (Cont’d)
Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The City establishes and amends the contribution requirements of both the
plan members and the City. Costs of administering the plans are funded by
the plans. The City’s annual pension cost for the current year and related
information for each plan is as follows:

Officers’ and Paid
Employees’ Police Firefighter
Penzion Pension Pension
Plan Plan Plan
Annual pension cost 5 B6,651 ) 719,845 $ 253,856
Contributions made 5 110,886 § 765,273 $ 325,635
Actuarial valuation date 1/1/03 1/1/03 1/1/03
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal
Asset wvaluation method 5-Year Smoothed 5-Year Smoothed S5-Year Smoothed
Value Value Value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return B% 8% B%
Projected salary increases
includes inflation 5% 5% 5%
Cost of living adjustment - 2.5% 2.5%

Three-yvear trend information is as follows:

Annual Percentage

Year Pension of APC Net Pension

Ended Cost (APC) contributed Obligation
Officers employees 2003 $ B6,651 128% $ -
Pensicn 2002 $ 18,601 363% -
Plan 2001 - - -
Police 2003 § 719,845 106% s -
Pension 2002 $ 537,335 121% -
Plan 2001 $ 479,208 100% -
Paid 2003 $ 293,B96 111% 5 -
Firefighters 2002 $ 68,211 139% -
Pension Plan 2001 $ 66,834 100% -

(continued)
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‘ CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) (Cont’d)
Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost {Cont‘d)

The City was utilizing the Level III provision allowing £for delayed
implementation of the actuarial funding standards specified in Act 205 over
a period not to exceed 15 years. In 1995, it was anticipated that the
proceeds from the City’s issuance of $32 million in pension bonds would
fully fund each of the pension plans. The State requires the City to
continue calculating its minimum municipal obligation for Act 205 purposes
exclusive of the bond proceeds. This minimum municipal obligation will be
used as a factor in determining the amount of State pension aid the City is
entitled to under Act 205. Act 205 provides that the funding of unfunded
pension liabilities with bond proceeds will not reduce the State pension aid
that would be due the City absent such funding. State aid has been pledged
as security for the debt service on the pension bonds.

Pension assets consist primarily of common stocks, U.S. government
obligations, corporate obligations, and money market funds.

Police and Paid Firefighters’ Pensions Litigation

The City was the defendant in lawsuits filed by the Police union and
Firefighters’ union claiming the City unlawfully changed the method of
caleulating the cost of living pension benefits in 1992. These claims went
to arbitration and in 1994, the arbitrator ruled that the wmethod of
ealculating the cost of living pension benefit be revised to the method used
before it was unlawfully changed retroactive to 1992.

The revisions to each of the pension plans as provided by the aforementioned
arbitrator’s awards (awards) regquire the City to contribute an additional
$3.7 million for ten years beginning in 1996 and an additional $1.9 million
for ten years beginning in 2006, as determined by the City’s actuaries, to
fully fund the pensions in accordance with Level III of the Act 205 Recovery
Program. However, the City has received authorization £from the Public
Employee Retirement Commission to suspend these payments as long as the
dispute comtinues in litigation or negotiation.

In May 2004, the City received notification that they were required to fully
reflect all of the pension benefits provided under the 1994 arbitration
awards in the Act 205 Actuarial Valuation Reports prepared as of January 1,
2003, in order to comply with the actuarial reporting and funding standards
mandated under Act 205. The City of York has been advised by their actuary
that the unfunded accrued liability related to the arbitration award is
$25.33 million. Under the current provisions of Act 205, the City’s annual
minimum municipal obligation would increase by just under $3 million perx
year and the annual normal cost would increase by about $561,000 for a total
increase in the annual minimum municipal obligation of approximately §3.56
million.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) (Cont’d)
Police and Paid Firefighters’ Pensions Litigation (Cent’d)

The City is researching various funding methods to meet the added cost of
the annual minimum municipal obligation including an amendment to Act 205
allowing for a thirty year level percentage amortization schedule using a
five percent annual increase or a taxable 30 year bond issue. An amendment
to Act 205 requires passage by the Pennsylvania legislature. The revisions
to each of the pension plans provided by the awards are not reflected in the
actuarial cost of living adjustment assumptions, actuarially determined
pension benefit obligations or as a net pension obligation. Under signed
agreements with the unions, the City is paying the amounts required by the
provisions of each award to each of the retirees currently receiving pension
benefits. The Agreements state that the City is making these payments
without prejudice to the ultimate resolution of these awards.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 14, the City provides
f11l health care benefits {(i.e., medical, surgical, hospitalization, major
medical, dental, wvision, and prescription) for all retired employees and
their spouses under the wvaricus union contracts and City policy for
nonorganized employees. For all employees other than police, the City-
provided health care benefits convert to a Medicare supplement with a §5,000
lifetime maximum benefit at the age of 65. The retired employees are
required to pay monthly to the City, one-half of the actual cost subject to
annual co-payment limitations established in each of the union contracts and
by City Council for nonorganized employees.

The City’'s cost of providing full health care benefits for retired employees
is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis through the City’s intermal serxvice
fund. The net cost of providing full health care benefits for retirees was
$1,068,239 in 2003.

At December 31, 2003, the number of retirees or spouses eligible for full
health benefits was approximately 264.

SELF-INSURANCE HEALTH INSURANCE

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to major medical self-
insurance. The City has a stop/loss agreement with an insurance company
which covers ali individual claim amounts exceeding $125,000 up to a maximum
of %1,000,000. The City also has an aggregate stop/loss agreement with an
insurance company which covers aggregate claims exceeding $2,557,385.
Premiums are paid into the internal service fund by all other funds and are
available to pay claims, claim reserves, and administrative costs of the
progranm.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAIL: STATEMENTS

SELF-INSURANCE HEALTH INSURANCE (Cont’d)

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim
liabilities are calculated considering the effects of recent claim
settlement trends as determined by the ¢City‘'s independent third-party
administrator. Changes in the balances of claims liability (net of excess
insurance) during the past two years ended December 31, 2003, were as
follows:

Current
Year Claims
Beginning of and Charges Claim Balance at
Year Liability in Estimates Payments Year End
20902 8 339,803 5 3,159,060 $§ 3,119,363 s 379,600
2003 $ 379,600 ] 3,558,278 $ 3,564,131 5 413,747

In addition, the City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts,
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; error, and omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled
claims from these risks did not exceed commercial insurance coverage during
the vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leagses

on May 27, 1981, the City entered inte a twenty-year lease, cancelable with
six months notice, for the rental of office space. This lease was renewed in
May 2003, for an additional five year term. Rent expenditures under this
agreement totaled §145,698 for the year ended December 31, 2003. This lease
may be increased annually based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Future minimum lease payments for this lease are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 145,368
2005 145, 968
2006 145,968
2007 48,656

5 486,560

The City alsc has several leases for vehicles used in City operations. Lease
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2003, under these leases
amounted to $22,692.

{(continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases {Comt’d)
Future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 22,6392
2005 22,692
2006 22,692
2007 13,237

3 81,313

The City has alsc entered into several noncancelable operating leases for
office equipment. The future minimum commitments for these leases are not
material to the City’'s operations.

Grants

Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE YORK CITY GENERAL AUTHORITY

The City has entered into a management and administration agreement with the
York City General Authority to operate, manage and administer the
Authority’s parking system. The management agreement vreguires that the
Authority pay the City a management fee to the general fund in twelve equal
installments. The City incurred $787,075 in operating expenses and received
$607,871 in fees under the management agreement in 2003. The City received
$141,000 in administrative fees under an administration agreement in 2003. A
receivable of $373,29%4 ig recorded in the general fund for fees which were
earned under these agreements, but unpaid at December 31, 2003.

{continued)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAYL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION

The City is a party to numerous lawsuits that have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. It is the opinion of management, as advised by legal
counsel, that these suits will not have a material effect on the financial
statements of the City.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January of 2004, the City borrowed 45,000,000 in the form of a Tax and
Revenue Anticipation Note, Series of 2004, bearing interest at an annual

rate of 1.28B%.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - GENERAL FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Pinal with Final
Budget - Budget -
Original Final Positive Pogitive
Budget Budget {Negative) Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes % 12,296,950 § 12,481,204 $ 184,254 512,380,342 {100, 8862)
Licenses and permits 2,500,000 2,545,362 45,362 1,656,664 (888,698)
Fines and forfeits 1,374,350 1,174,350 - 548,374 {225,976)
Grants and contributions 2,194,052 6,716,240 4,522,088 6,008,741 {709,398)
Charges for services 5,447,127 5,683,916 236,789 5,547,434 263,517
Loan repayments - 148,866 148,868 148,866 -
Interest 50,000 50,000 - 54,202 4,202
Miscellanecus B3, 750 91,130 1,380 263,539 172,408
Total revenues 23,752,228 28,850,968 5,138,738 27,406,162 (1,484,808}
Expenditures
General goverament 2,732,784 7,124,951 {4,3582,187) 6,252,240 872,751
Sanitation 2,618,583 2,647,578 (28, 985) 2,673,522 (25, 944)
public safety 15,545,267 15,528,783 16,484 15,267,532 261,251
Highways and streets 509,010 508,764 246 478,781 33,013
public works 1,838,809 1,875,037 (36,228} 1,791,374 B3,663
Community development
and planning 1,722,667 2,221,016 (498,349} 1,871,969 349,047
Other departments and
programs 74,053 74,053 - 72,751 1,302
Total Expenﬁitures 25,041,193 29,980,222 (4,939,029} 28,405,139 1,575,083
BExcess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,288,964) {31,089,254) 155, 710 (998,877) 90,277
Gther financing
sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,444,481 1,444,451 - 1,818,251 373,760
Transfers out {133,300) (253,319) {120,019) {176,014} 77,305
Total other f£inancing
sources {uses} 1,311,181 1,181,172 (120,019) 1,642,237 45%, 065
Net change in fund balance 4 22,227 H 101,918 5 75,691 5 643,260 543,342
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY DATA

mhe City’'s budget is prepared on a cash basis. Statements indicated as
budget basis are prepared on a cash basis for both budgeted amounts and
actual results.

The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual presents
comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary
basis for the General Fund. Because accounting principles applied for
purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from
those used to present financial statements in conformity with GARAP, a
reconciliation of resultant basis, timing, perspective, and entity
differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources of
financial resources over expenditures and other uses of financial resources
for the year ended December 31, 2003 is presented below:

Excess of revenues and other sources cover
{under) expenditures and other uses

{budgetary basis} g 643,260
Change in:

Receivables (1,203,278}
Payables 31,9829

Excess of revenues and other sources over {undexr)
expenditures and other uses (GARAP basis) 4 (528,089}

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Appropriation Expenditures

General Fund
Sanitation § 2,647,578 § 2,673,522

Funds sufficient to provide for the excess expenditures were made available
from other functions within the fund and accumulated fund balance.

BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISONS

The General Fund’s budget comparison is presented in the Other Required
Supplementary Information section. The nonmajor fund and major debt service
fund budget comparisons are presented in the combining section. On the
bottom of these comparisons is a demonstration of the adjustments necessary
to reconcile to the GAAP change in fund balance/net assets.
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Schedule of Funding Progress and Contributions from the Employer
Officers’

CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
Required Supplementary Data

and Employees’ Pension Plan

{(Unaudited - See accompanying auditors' report)

The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Officers’

and Employees' Pension Plan:

Schedule of Funding Progress

Ovarfunded
{Unfunded}
Actuarial Entry Age Overfunded ARL as a %
value of Actuarial Acerued (Unfunded) Covered of Covered
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
valuation date {a} (b} {a-b) (a/b) {c) ({a-b}/e}
1/1/%8 (1} 514,597,428 $11,645,025 5 3,352,403 128 . B% 3 5,444,601 61.6%
1/1/93 16,438,172 12,406,103 4,032,068 132. 5% 5,883,437 70.5%
1/1/060 17,828,288 13,232,588 4,595,700 134. 7% 5,697,316 B0.7%
1/1/0% 18,109,142 14,116,471 3,982,671 128 .3% 6,086,232 65.6%
i/1/02 17,326,047 15,472,339 1,853,708 112 0% 6,383,980 29.0%
1/1/03 17,583,625 15,879,934 1,703,691 110.7% 6,186,008 27.5%
gchedule of Contributions f£rom the Employer
Annual Contributions
required from Percentage
Calendar year contribution employear {2) contributed
1988 8 23,641 3 23,641 100%
1880 - - 100%
2000 - - 100%
2001 - - 100%
2002 18,601 18,601 100%
2003 B6, 851 BG, 651 100%

The information presented asbove was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation (January 1, 2003) follows:

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases

Entry age normal
S5-Year Smoothed Value

tncludes moderate inflation based on long-term historical average rates

Cost-ocf-living adjustment

(1) On December 30, 1995, the City issued 531,673,835 in general obligation
ponds to finance the unfunded pension obligation of the City's

pension plans.

{2} Includes general municipal

pension gystem State aid.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
Required Supplementary Data
gchedule of Funding Progress and Contributions from the Employer
Police Pension Plan
(Unaudited - see accompanying auditors' report)

The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Police
Pension Plan:

Schedule of Funding Progress

Oveayrfunded

{(unfunded)

Actuarial Entry age Overfunded AAEL a2 & %

value of actuarial accrued (unfunded) Covered of covered
assets liability {(AAL) AARL Funded ratio payroll payroll

valuation date {a} (b} {a-b} {a/b} (c} {la-b) /e)
1/1/98 (1) 531,269,927 $30,228,123 & 1,041,804 i03.4% 5 4,000,855 26.0%
1/1/99 33,501,860 32,083,444 1,418,416 104 .4% 4,431,105 32.0%
1/3/00 35,376,833 34,017,512 1,359,321 104 .0% 4,637,696 29 .3%
1/1/01 34,479,683 34,718,082 {238,409) 98.3% 5,082,257 {4.7%)
1/1/02 32,442,377 37,407,381 (4,965,004) 86 .7% 5,393,437 {92.1%)
1/1/03 32,332,762 39,534,359 (7,201,587} 81.8% 5,304,211 {135.8%)

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer

Annual Coptributions

required from Percentage
Calendar year contribution employer (2) contributed
1998 {1} 5 526,607 5 526,607 100%
1983 417,449 417,448 100%
2000 355,299 355,299 160%
2001 479,208 479,208 100%
2002 527.335 537,335 101, 9%
2003 719,845 719,845 i00%

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation (January 1, 2003) follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Asset valuation method S-Year Smoothed Value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases
Includes moderate inflation based on leng-term historical average rates 5%

{1} On December 30, 1995, the City issued $31,673,835 in general cbligation
bonds to finance the unfunded pension obligation of the City's
pension plans.

(2) Includes general municipal pension system State aid.

{3) Based on the directions of the Public Employee Retirement Commission,
a5 discussed in Note 14, by January 15, 2005, the City is required to
amend its January 1,2003 actuarial valuation report to fully reflect
all of the pension benefits provided under the 1954 arbitration
award in order to comply with the actuarial reporting and
funding standards mandated under Act 205. The figure provided
does not reflect the amendments reguired by the Public
Enmployee Retirement Commission as the amended actuarial
reperts are not yet available.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
Reguired Supplementary Data
Schedule of Funding Progress and Contributions from the Employer
Paid Firefighters' Pension Plan
(Unaudited -~ see accompanying auditors' report)

The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from che City for the Paid
Firefighter*s Pension Plan.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Overfunded

{unfunded)

Actuarial Entry age Overfunded KAAL as a %

value of actuarial accrued {(unfunded) Covered of covered
assets liability (AAL) AAL Funded ratic payroll payroll

Valuation date {a) {b}) {a-b} {a/b) {c) {{a-b}/c}
1/1/98 (1) £22,903,271 $20,998,224 3 1,505,047 109.1% $ 2,730,958 69.8%
1/1/9% 24,393,015 22,290,370 2,102,645 109.4% 2,820,742 T4 .5%
1/1/600 25,443,711 22,929,298 2,514,413 111 0% 3,013,300 83.4%
1/1/03 24,533,353 24,054,908 478,448 162 .0% 3,248,247 14.7%
1/1/02 22,713,989 24,413,735 {1,699, 746) 93.0% 3,515,958 (46 .3%)
1/1/03 22,160,652 25,337,708 {(2,177,084) 87.5% 3,398,215 {93.5%)

gchedule of Contributions from the Employer

Annual Contributions

required from Parcentaga
Calendar year contribution enployer (2) contributed
1998 s 237,429 s 237,429 100%
1459 74,972 14,972 100%
20040 53,627 83,627 100%
2001 68,834 66,834 100%
2002 68,211 68,211 100%
2003 293,886 293,896 100%

The information presented above was determined as part cf the actuarial valuation at the date indicated.
additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation (January 1, 2003) follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normai
Asset valuation method 5-Year Smoothed Value
Actuarial assumptions:
investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases
includes moderate inflation based on long-term historical average rates 5%
Cost-of-living adjustment 2.50%

(1) On December 30, 1995, the City issued $31,673,835 in general obligation bonds
to finance the unfunded pension obligation of the City’'s pension plans.

(2} includes general municipal pension system State aid.

{3} Based on the directijons of the Public Employee Retirement Commisaion,
as discussed in Note 14, by January 15, 2005, the City is reguired to
amend its January 1,2003 actuarial valuation report to fully reflect
all of the pension benefits provided under the 159%4 arbitration
award in order to comply with the actuarial reporting and
funding standards mandated under Act 205. The figure provided
does not reflect the amendments regquired by the Public
Employee Retirement Commission as the amended actuarial
reports are not yet available.
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - DEBT SERVICE FUND - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Final with Final
Budget -~ Budget -
Criginal Final Pogitive Positive
Buduet Budyget [Negative) Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes % 1,206,889 $ 1,374,15% § 167,256 $ 1,328,302 s {46,053)
Charges for services 1,509,000 1,615,078 1i5,4678 1,426,812 (188, 2686)
Loan repayments 180,432 TBO, 432 - 780,433 1
Interest - 2,577 Z2,577 2,676 59
Total revenues 3,487,331 3,772,242 284,911 3,538,023 {234,219)
Expenditures
Current
General government 5,850 6,398 (548} 6,682 {284)
Dabi service 3,428,023 3,472,475 (44,452} 3,413,866 58,609
Total expenditures 3,433,873 3,478,872 (45,000) 3,420,548 58,325
Net change in fund balance s 53,458 5 283,360 5 239,511 ] 117,475 5 (175, 894)
Net change in fuad balance - budgetary basis 3 117,475
Increase in recelivables 33,498
Decrease in payables 152,570
let change in fund balance - GAAP basis S 303,543

bt
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

DUDGETARY (NON-GALAPY BASIS - RECREATION FUND - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

variance Variance
of COriginal of Actual
with Final with Final
Budget - Budget -
Original Final Positive Positive
Budget Budget [Negative) Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes 5 B63,B93 5 890,523 s 26,630 s 876,571 8 (13,952)
Grants and contributions - - - - -
Charges for services 628,275 678,070 49,795 506,077 {171,993}
Interest - - - - -
Miscellaneous &£,000 G, 000 - 6,725 725
Total revenues 1,498,168 1,574,583 76,425 1,389,373 (1B5,220)
Expenditures
Current
Highways and streets - - - - -
Parke and recreation 1,447,943 1,519,744 {71,801} 1,327,421 192,323
Capital outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,447,943 1,515,744 {71,801} 1,327,421 192,323
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues (under)
expenditures 50,225 54,849 4,624 61,952 7,103
Other financing sources
Transfers in - 19,354 15,354 18,180 {1,174}
Total cother financing
sOUTrCes ~ 15,354 19,354 18,380 {1,374}
Net change in fund balance 5 50,225 s 74,203 B} 23.978 3 B0,132 5 5,929
Explanation of difference between budget basis and GAAP:
Het change in fund balance - budgetary basis $ 80,132
Inerease {decrease} in receivables 60,573
Increase in payables (24,5443
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis 5 116,063
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND -

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Revenues
Grants and contributicns
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
Community development
and plananing
Other departments
and programsg

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditurees

Other financing
sources {uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources {(uses)

Change in neb assgets

Explanaticn of difference between budget basis and GAAP:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis

Increase (decrease) in receivables

Variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Final with Final
Budget - Budget -
Original Final Positive PoBitive
Budget Budget ({Negative) Actual [{Negative)
2,111,000 5 3,157,313 3 1,046,313 738,384 $ (2,418,%29)
- 333,448 333,448 147,498 {185, $52)
2,111,000 3,490,761 1,379,761 885,880 {2,604,8B1)
1,722,440 2,534,260 {B11,820) 1,197,088 1,337,172
- - - 42,745 (42,745}
388,560 672,433 (2B3,873) 292,583 379,850
2,112,000 3,206,653 (1,095,633) 1,532,416 1,874,277
- 284,068 284,068 {546,536) (930,604)
- - - 284,068 284,068
- - - 284,068 284,068
- S 284, 068 5 284,068 {362,468} 5 {646,536}
(362,468)
532,471
{170, 003)

{Decrease} increase in payables

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

BUDGETARY (NON-GRAP) BASIS - LIQUID FUELS FUND - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Final with Final

Budget - Budget -
Original Final Positive Positive
Budget Budget {Negative} Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes 3 - 3 - % - - -] -
Grants and contributions €00, 000 600,000 - 514,328 14,328
Charges for services 7.900 7,900 - 16,514 B,614
Interest - - - 7,061 7,061
Miscellaneous - 143, C00 143,000 43,429 (99,571)
Total revenues 607,500 750,900 143,000 681,332 (69,568)
Expenditures
Highways and streets 530,226 676,726 {146,500) 539,883 136,827
Parks and recreation - - - - -
Capital outlay a5, 000 8:,500 3,500 74,197 7,303
Total expenditures 615,226 758,226 (143,000) 614,096 144,130
Excess {deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures (7,326} (7,326) - 67,236 74,562
Other financing sources
Trangfers in - - - - -
Total other financing
SOUTCEes - - - - -
Net change in fund balance $ {7,326) 5 {7,326) 3 - §7,236 $ 74,562

Explanaticon of difference between budget basis and GRAP:

Net c¢hange in fund halance - budgetary bagis

Ingrease (decrease) in receivables
Increase in payables

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

B7
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET TQ ACTUAL

BUDGETARY {NON-GAAP} BASIS - STATE HEALTH GRANT FUND -
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Final with Final
Budget - Budget -
Original Final Pogitive Pogitive
Budget Budaet {Negative} Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Grants and contributions $ 2,260,030 $ 2,788,599 S 526,969 2,354,615 s {432,384}
Charges for services - - - - -
Miscellaneous 10,008 10,600 - 4,195 {5,805)
Total revenues 2,270,030 2,796,289 526,869 2,358,810 (438,1B9)
Expenditures
Community development
and planning - - - - -
Other departments and
programs 2,213,083 2,740,312 {527,219} 2,442,212 258,180
Capital outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 2,213,083 2,740,312 (527,219) 2,442,212 288,100
excess {(deficiency) of
revenues over {(under)
expenditures 56,837 S6,687 (250) {83,402) (140,083)
Cther financing sources
{uses}
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out (5,000) {4,750) 250 - 4,750
Yotal other financing
sources (uses) {(5,000) {4,750) 250 - 4,150
Change in net assets $ 51,837 5 51,937 s - (83,402) $ {135,338)
Explanation of difference between budget basis and GRAF:
Net ghange in fund balance - budgetary basis (83,402)
increzse {decrease) in receivables (5,828)
{becrease) increase in payables 21,883
et change in fund balance - GAAP basig {67,337)
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET T0O ACTUAL

BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

variance Variance
of Original of Actual
with Final with Final
Budget - Budget -
Original Final Positive Pogitive
Budget Budget [Negative) Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Grants and contributions 5 60, GO0 160, 000 S 100,000 - 5 {160,000}
Total revenues 60,00 160,000 100,000 - {160,000)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 138,079 338,744 (200, 665) 257,833 80,913
Total expenditures 138,079 338,744 (200,665) 257,833 B0,911
gxcess (deficiency} of
revenues over {under}
expenditures {78,079) {178,744) (100,665) {257,833) {79,0B9)
other financing sour¢es
(uses}
Transfers in 138,075 238,744 100,665 157,833 (80,911)
Transfers out (60,000} (60,000) - - 80,000
Total other financing
gources (uses) 78,079 178,744 100, 665 157,833 (20,811)
Net change in fund balance S - - $ - (100, 000) § {100,000)

Explanation of difference between budget basis and GARP:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis

Increage in receivables
Increase in payables

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

89
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
Officers' and Paid
Empioyees' Police Firefighters'
Pengion Pension Pensicn
Fund Fund Fund Total

Aasets
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 1,423,599 $ 2,546,703 § 1,720,B18% $ 5,651,121
Investments, at fair value 16,184,830 28,953,540 19,564,044 64,702,514
Total assets 17,608,529 31,500,243 21,284,853 70,393,635

Net Assets

Held in trust for pension benefits $17,608,529 $31,500,243 $21,284,863 570,393,635

20



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - AGENCY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Escheats Fire
Fund Escrow Total
Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 5,374 ] 153,511 ] 159,285
Other receivables 10,481 - 10,481
Total assets 15,855 153,511 169, 766
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,8558 153,911 169, 766
Total liabilities 5 15,855 s 153,911 3 169,766
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Additions:
Employee contributiens
Employer contributicons
Supplemental state aid
Total contributions
Iinvestment income:

Interest and dividend income
Net appreciation of investments

Less investment expenses
Het investment income
Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments

KNet increase

Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits, beginning of year

Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits, end of year

Officers® and Paid
Emplovees' Police Firefighters'
prension Pension Pension
Fund Fund Fund Total
g 128,895 4 272,863 ] 143,076 1 544,835
86,651 719,845 283,896 1,100,382
24,235 45,428 31,738 101,402
235,782 1,038,135 468,711 1,746,629
500,841 520,166 £32,416 2,083,423
2,917,923 5,272,524 3,585,825 11,776,272
3,418,764 §,192,690 4,218,241 13,829,655
(88,506) {162,608} {111, 758) {362,872)
3,330,258 6,030,082 4,106,482 13,466,823
3,570,040 7,068,218 4,575,194 15,213,452
{(614,532) (2,511,943) {1,757,541) {4,B84,016)
2,955,508 4,586,275 2,817,653 10,328,436
i4,653,023 26,943,968 18,467,210 60,064,159
517,608,528 $31,500,243 $21,284,863 $70,393,635
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